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1 1
2017 40,780 71,646 102 _ - _ 112,528
13,778 (22,191) (84) - (31) (7.619)  (16,147)
_ _ 55 _ _. _ 55
_ 295 9 - _ _ 304
- ® - - - - ®)
_ _ _ 87 _ _ 87
_ _ _ _ 150 _ 150
_ _ _ _ _ 89 89
_ _ _ _ _ 7,530 7,530
- - ©) - - - )
2017 12 31 54,558 49,742 77 87 119 _ 104,583

33

©)

« = )
12 31
2015 2016
( y C ) 2017

) 5,285 5,199 4,248
(i 2,856 2,786 3,291
() 19,885 18,936 18,672
) 181 312 642
() 1,362 1,597 1,812
() 2,860 2,871 3,028
() 12,715 13,938 16,072
() 47 36 53
() 673 559 654
() 486 523 727
) 59 60 48
) 468 232 193
) 368 332 344
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)
)
)
)
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)
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)
) ( 15
(xi) CDMA CDMA
x )
x )
/
C = )
12 31
2016
2017
( )
966 1,502
798 774
1,764 2,276
21,331 22,682
1,813 1,838
5,271 19,098
61,710 40,000
90,125 83,618
/

15

137/213



2016 2017 12 31
()
)
2016
)
2016 2017 12 31
©

2018

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO000OO00D0DO000DO000nDOodnoE.s27)

Ogoooood
« = )
12 31
2015 2016 2017
30,131 _ _
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() - 12 49
« = )
2016 2017
10 5
2,278 2,152
2,288 2,157
3,697 2,611
807 1,374
4,504 3,985
C )
12 31
2015 2016 2017
9,859 9,886 7,804
916 801 816
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2012 916.7
4.76 2013 11
2014 2015 2016 11
33.3  66.7 100.0
2012 2016 2015 2016 12 31
2016 12 31 2012
152 2015 12 31
102
2016 2017 12 31
36
2017 12 31
/
(
)
2001 13 542
2000 25 168
(
) 2001 11 22 43
2007 15 350
) ( 2004 10 15 60
2005 500
( 1,000,001
) 2006 10 OV
2011 500
1984 91
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1AS 19 2019
IFRS 17 2021
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IFRS

IFRS
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1AS 39
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CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LINITFD AND SUBSIDIARTES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER, 31, 2006 AND 2017

(Amounts in millions)

Pierrmab 31 Thepwmsibior 11,
Ftey 016 wh7
HMH HME
(mwtuiml}
ASKETS
Curreni assels
Cash mnd cash cquivalmis 4 244617 19410
Shoet-term bink deposits 3A51 3100
Adeaunts redenvabie, met ] 214463 2,006
Imventories i i 4,138
Prepayments md ether curment assets 7 19535 218
Trscmmee Lix recoverable 0 (]
Todal current aswes T3 TL350
Mon-owrrenl ases
Property, plant and equigment, et 8 IREaTl 408,257
Constrsction in progress 9 ARG 3,106
Lewse prepaviments 22955 2062
Groodwill (L] 20423 H.020
Irmangible assets 1n 11244 12,391
Irnferests in associales 11 54572 151G
Irrvesienenis 13 1.53% L1548
Dieferred tax ssscls 14 £ 061 5ATY
Cather asscts T 1077 3.8
Total non- current ussels STRA24 520 bl
Todal swuets 652 5% 0,198
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabiBtes
Short-term debt j B A0, T8O 51,558
Current potion of long-term debit and payable 15 62,276 L1446
Avcounts payable 14 1224805 1952
Aceraed expenses and other pay ables 7 #1073 8,685
Tneoumie Liny pery able N el
Current portion of finance lease ohligntions 53 %1
Corrent portion of defomed revenues 15 1253 1,333
Todal cur remi Hahilities 31%133 IT5 AR
Mon-ouerrend Hshititles
Long-term debd 15 8370 48,5046
Fmance lease obligations 30 X6
Deferred revenises LE] 2308 1528
Diefierred tax liabalities 14 4770 8,010
Caher pon-currend labilitics: 582 [iraly
Total non-current liabilities 17077 0,080
Tolal Teabilitses 6210 3% a97
Equity
Share capital 1% BOSIT 80,632
Reserves 20 2544 244,088
Total equity stiributalle (o squity heldors of tee Company 313377 324 847
Mem-tonitrolling inberesis a7l B30
Tedal equity il HE 328,687
Totul labilities and equity A5 G5 sl 104

Sec agcompmrying pobes (o cosolidated financial statem s,
F-5
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CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, 3016 AND WA T
{Amounts in millices, ewepl per hare data)

Vomiar o il Thorowes ot 11

Mo — ORL B SET
= TmE_THhE_TRE
fretaind]  reiubnd)
Operating revemies 3 BLAT OB AN
Operating expemies
Diepreciation and mvorfisdion 7660 (67042 (74,9515
Hetwork aperations md suppon 2 BLA3E) (MIRG  (10E 960
Selling, general md admEnistrative 54800 (56426 (SEA3)
Personmel expenies I SL3E) (M) (M0dE)
Oaher operaling exponics M Egss) (52 Me  dia1d)
Tobal operating expenses 05070 4325300 (33008
Operating income 2EHT 3723 aren
Gain firony Tower Assets Disposal 1214
Wet finance costs 1= 4.275) (3,255 (3,101)
Tavvestaend imcoms # £ L] 147
Equity in {loss) / incomee of sssociates |m " 517
Earndngs before income tax 26,808 24,1146 24,953
[ e 1 ] (6.552) 35 (e 192
Prodfit ler the year PN ET 15123 18,761
— I —
her comprelensive income for the vesr
Ttewas thet mry B reciasyifcd aohvequaratly fe preft or dor
Change in Tair value of avallsble-for-sale cqusty securitics 652 (IIE) {0
Diferred tax on change m fair valae of mvailable-for.zale squity securmties {163%) 57 H{C
Exchange difference on translation of financin] statenvents of subsidSaries outside mainland China 128 190 (255)
Share of sther comgrehonsive moome of assoc ales | [ T
(iher comprehensive income for Use year, ned of fax 621 25 (552)
Total conepretiensive income for the year M. TET 18148 18 HH
Proflt wiir hatable 1o
Exaity holders of the omgp ey 20058 18018 157
Mem-tomtrolling inberests RE 105 [E)
Profit for the year 2LLAE 1E. 123 18761
Tolal coanprebensive inconee altribulable (o
Equity holders of the Cormpiany 20679 18043 18,065
Men-gonirolling interests RE 1035 I+
Total conpe ehensive ineonve for the year 20.THT 15,148 18.20%
Basic emrnings por share s 2% 0,22 (123
Mumber of shares (Im millions) o &931 E‘?}! LE

S accompanymg noles Lo consolidated fmancial Aaommis
F4

148/213



EDINETOOOO
Oo00000000000000000000000(E05927)
ooOooood

Table of Contents

CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LINITED AND SUBSIDIARTES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOE THE YEARS EMDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, 2006 ANID 2007
{Amounts in millions)

1 s adill wrw ol

Capital " arhange ] Hom camtralimg Faiud
-] _W_
B/ B B W O S W S p i
Balmce i o Taosary 12013 an proncunl ¥ eepaied Wan e TR an =] T R T ¥ 7 = R T
Adpaped Tor ihe Eighth Acquasion i — 11] = — — - = 15 — 3%
Brilimtce i off Tamwir¥ L2015, ad recbile<) 037 TN 10 ME CENEF] 24 (=i 1L R [re] =20 |43
Poalii o the mam, s rosed — — - — — - ey T o EoYET
Dbty ¢ om el aie micoi Do i Yo = = — — 453 12 = [ ¥ = L5
Total commprokomsnve iacom s Sar ded o 51 remased — — — T 1 0000 AT ] s KT
Mogrutos of o oot oling mheresy - it = - - 2 = 11} [ T
Clonfirbet o From mon -onke sl sl - i - - - - - T 40 iy
D|..'|u'4ﬁnu-¢uﬂh¢u|ﬂlm —_ - _— - _ —_ ==, a=p o ]
Dhvaden di a - - - - - - 18 & AEn - 0k, 160
Apgaope R - - 1901 - - (1508 - = -
Balmsce s of Deommbar 30, 2015, 0 recaiesd Warr ALIE 10,748 TETE BT (14} 12k 43 XLEN T S T
Feafil [ Ut Feir, i 1 aied = = = - = ™= B3 FEME (=] [FRFR
Ctbar coo pretimave meome for e e — — — — '|EI 15 — =] — 25
Total eompribinnve racome Eof e it i reslafed = = = = (165 15 15518 LEGsl} ] HL W8
Duspona of » b wry - - - — - - - = [T e
Eyrmvimbon to pas-tonaoling Wi _ - — — —_ _ - —_ (] [T
Chrdendi an - - - - - - EAEN AR e L]
Apgariqae s an M = = - :EZ‘S = — { ﬂ = - -
Balmice i of Decesborr 31, 2006, o rhitai-d Ban  _Imim 1374 7151 T i _TIRERR I 7 JREHE
Frafit for the yoar - - — - — - TTEE] [TTTH HH [TET]
Cthar ¢ o prelmm oy s com For s year — = — = ok R ) — = el
Total comprabomn ve sncoma s Sor the yow — — — — [k =y IEI.rIF [T I I:EIE|
Airpmnon of e Eighh Aoquered Group 1 - (2] - - = = i M = il
Aipunbm o aon<oairaing wicees - # —_ —_ - _ —_ 1] §1.4] g5
Duorietion o poa-onToliing e = s == - = —_ = - an an
o o a _ - = = =n - (7.5 1530 = [er
Approprasion 0 = = - 158 - - (1,685 - - -
Ctlpemx —_— ] | E— S . — .
Balmscs i of Devemheer 1, 30117 BEE O ELE o om0 (b _WEIG  ER3T  _______§0 DT
Sec adcompanying nobes 1o consolidaned finandial stabements,
F-\I‘
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CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LINMITED AND SUBSIDIARTES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOE THE YEARS EMDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, 2006 ANID 2017
{Amounts in millions)

Mt ensh from operating activitles

Cash Mows wsed In Investing activitles
Capdal expendibure
Purchasze of imestmonts
Liectse prepiny ments
Proceeds oo disposal of property, plant and equipament
Progeeils from disposal of lease prepay ments
Proceeds from disposal of Investrments
et cash (outflow) [ mfloaw from disposal ofa subsidiary
Puschase af shom-tarm bank deposite
Maturily of shon-gamm bank deposats
et ensh used In Investing activitles

Cadh Mows Froam |/ {used i) Anancing sciivities
Principal clament of firanoe lease pambods
Proceeds from bank, debt mnd other loans
Hepayment of bank debt and ciher loans
Repayment of defierred consideration in respect of the
Mohile Metwork Acquizition (= defined in Xote 1 5
Payment of dividends
Payment for the acquiskion of non-controlling intarests
Cenitribataon from non-controlling inlerests
Cnsh distribatbons (o non=controlling intorests
el cash From / fused inp Rnandng activities
Nel incrense | {decresse) in cush and cush equivalents
Cash amd cash equivalents st beginning of year
EfMect of changes n foreign exchange rale
Cwshy mond cwshy eaquivalents ol end of year

See adcompanying noles 1o consolidabed financial stabements

Vi o dl vl Dl ovaliionr 51

Faem W W W

HAm RO HAm
dreatnd]  (resaned]
(a) _1OBTSS  p0D,135  9n%02
(101,903)  (96,67H)  (87.334)
(L] {19} (3,0r) (5]
(124) [ [t
78S 1,560k 2,66
k] 1] 2
— (50 184
[3.764) (323 (1815
2731 2550 3,0
(03 255) (S0dE) (RS 268
(14} ] (B
GT87S  LIO446 12825
(56,8620 (113366 (68953)
— — 61710
16060 (GARE  (7.530)
(T - (30
127 - -
(150 BT L)
A, B (B339 (16, 147)
11,30 (TAGH) 4,908
205G 3560 2617
124 1 (X9
31860 AT IR4ED

Fti
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CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARTES
MOTES TOCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOE THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, 2006 ANID 2007
{Amounts in millions)

in)  Recondlistion of mrmings before income tnx (o nel cosh from opersting activities

Wear oned Tor smlbeer 11
I HE O
“HARH RN HATH
irmtsted) (et

Enrnings before income fux 246,608 016 4,953

Adgustments for:
Deeproceation and amonization G656 T84T 74951
Impasrment losses for doubtlial debis 2.X5] 21T 206
Impairmet losses for lng-lived sscls 51 62 10
Wrile dovwn of inventories 147 176 178
Ievestrent ine:ome (# (4 (147
Equity in boss [ (meone) of ssociales [ (1) (HTT)
Intenest income (37 (344) (425
Imferesl exponse 45374 370z 5586
et Foreign exchinge loss / (gaim) T3 {113 (k2
et logs on retmemnent and depesal of bong-lived sssets 1,373 1867 1,541
{ann from Tower Assels Dasposal {5,214 —_ -
Increase in pocounts receavable (L6 @A) (2770
{Increase) [ decrease m imcenlonies {2,205 B05% s
Increase in prepay ments md cther ourend assets (58T (3783} (L61R)
{Increase) | decresse in olher assets (&7 E1 (131}
Increase | (decrease) in mocounts payable 22,100 278 A3
Incresse m aocnsed expenses and other payables | 1 8TE 7233
Degrease in defamed reventacs (R ] {418 {202

Cash grnerated from operations L1705 109075 |08 3130
Irterest received iTe £l 433
Interest pasd BE02 37T (A TT
Tevestenent inssceme received n it 6
Incommee e panid L8 T T 0 Y I €

Mt cush from operating activities LOB, TS5 100135 12

() Thee amound For e year ended Decemnbser 31, 2016 inc huded the payment For the cash ingection ansounting 1o RMBZ 966 0 Cash Consideration” ) to Clima
Towver Corporation Limited ¢*China Tower™} in relation to the dispesal of certain telecommumications towers and related assets to China Tower (the * Tower
Asscts Disposal”) in 2005, The Cash Consideration was paid in Febmuary 2016,

Sec accompanying noles to consolidabed Tinandial sabements.
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CHIMNA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARTES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(AN Benminb] smounts in millions, exoept per share dala and evoepd otherwise stated)

1. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Principal activitles

China Telecom Corporation Limited ithe “Company'*) and its absidiaries (vereimafler, collectively refermed 1o as the * Group™) offers a comprehensive
rmge of wireline and mobile lebeconmmumications serveces mchuding voioe, Intemel, telecommmusmication network resouroe services and lease of network
equpmet, mformetion mul application services nnd olher related services, The Giroup provides wireling telecommunications servic es and relsted services in
Bieijang Muricipality, Shangha Municipality, Guagdong Provmee, Jiangss Province, Zhejiang Frovince, Anlui Province, Fujian Provinde, Jianga Provinee,
Ciumrei Zhuang Autonomes Region, Chongqing Municipality, Sichusn Province, Hubei Province, Hinan Provine, Haiman Provinee, Guishou Province,
Wurman Province. Shami Provinee, Gansu Provinee. Cinghai Provinde, Ningxia Hut Autonomons Regbon and Xingiang Uvar Autenomos Reglon of the
People's Republic of China {the “PRC), The Growp also provides mobile telecommumications and related services in the mainland China and Macu Specml
Administrative Region (Macau™) of the FRC, The Group slso provides imfemational telecomenunications services, including lesse of nebwork equipment,
Internationa] Inbermet acc ess and trmsil, Inlomet data coster and mobale virtual network: services m ceriain coumtrics and regions of the Asea Pacific, Europe,
Afrien, South America and MNorth Amvericn. The operatices of the Gircup in the mainland China e subject 1o the apervieion snd regulstion by the PRC
govertmend.

Chrganlzation

A gt of the reongamizntion (he " Restructuring™) of Ching Telecommunicetions Corporation, the Company was incorporated in the PROC on
Seplamber 10, 2002 In ¢omection with the Restructurmg, China Tebocomimmications Corporation ransfemed to the Compay the wircline
telecoemmunacalions business and related operations in Shanghai Municipality, Guangdong Province, Jiangaus Province and Zhejiang Province together with
the relaed aseets and |abilitics (e “Predecessor Operations™) in comssderation For 68317 ardimary domestie ghares of te Comgamy. The shares fssued Lo
China Telecommumicativons Corporation have a par salue of BMB. (0 each mnd represented the entire regitored and ssued share capital of the Compery ol
that date,

On December 31, 2003, the Compargy atquired the enlire equity imtereas i Anld Telecorn Company Limited, Fujian Teleeoin Comypanmy Limsted,
Jimgxi Telecom Cnrq:-'ly Limited, (Guangxi Telecom Company Limited, Chorgqing Telecom Company Limited and Sichusn Telecom Company Limiled
Ceadbestively the “Fira Acquired Group™) and cemain network management and rescarch and develbopment facilities from Chana Telecomirmingeations
Corporation for & tolal purchase price of EMBAS 000 {hereinaiter, refermed to 2= the “First Acquistion™).

O hune 30, 2004, the Compaery acquired the entire equity interests m Hubel Telecom Company Limited, Hunan Telecom Comparny Eangted, Hainm
Telecom Cotmparny Limited. Guizhou Telocom Compaiy Limmed, Yurman Telovom Company Limited, Shaarea Telecom Conpary Limled, Gansu Telooom
Compiary Limited, Qmghai Telecom Company Limited, Ningxia Telecom Comganny Linited and Xinjiang Telecom Company Limited {collectively the

“Second Acquired Group” ) Trom Chine Telecomemunications Cosporstion for a todal purchase price of RMB27.800 ercinafia, refomed toas the ~Sooomd
Acauieition™),

O Jume 30, 2007, the Compay acquired the eniire equily inberests m Ching Teleoom Sysan Inbagration Co., Lid. (“CTSI7), Chima Telecom Global
Linited (~CT Global") and China Telecoen (Americas) Corporstion ¢*CT Amerscas™ ) (collectively the “Third Acquired Group™) from Chins
Tebecomrmncalions Corporation for & tolal purchase price of RMBI 408 (lsereinadter, referred to as the “Thind Acqueisition™),

O Junie 340, 2008, the Congrarry acquired the entire equity inberest in China Telocom Group Beijing Comporation (“Beijing Telecom™ of the *Fourth
.ﬁpqu:!rp(_i Cormpany ™) from China Telecommmications Corporation for @ tota] purchese price of RMES, 557 (thereimfler, refermed to as the = Fourth
Aviuisstion”),

O Avgust 1, 2001 and Decamber 1, 3011, the subswdures of the Comparry, E-arfing Pay Co., LIdE-surfing Pay”") and E-arfing Media Co., Lid
(“E-surfing Medin™), moquired the e-commerce business and video medin business (collectively the “Fifth Acquired Giroap™) from China Telecommunicmims
Corperation and its subsidzarses for a total purchase price of RMB6] (heremalber, referred to a3 the “Filth Acqaisstbon™L The Comparsy dispesed the equity
interes @ E-surfing Media to China Telecommamicalions Corporation i 2003

F8
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CHIMNA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARTES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(AN Benminb] smounts in millions, exoept per share dala and evoepd otherwise stated)

L. FRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, GRGANIEATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continuedy
O gandzation feentinued)

O April 30, 2001 2. the Company soquired the digital rusding busingss (ibe “Sixth Acquired Business™) (rem Besttone Holding Co., Lid. (“Bestione
Haldmg™), a subsidiary of China Telecormemmications Corporalion, at a purchase price of RAMEBAS (hereinaiber, relemed to as the “Sixth Acqusttion™).

O December 51, 2003, CT Global , a subsidiary of the Compary, acquired 10686 equity imterest in China Telecom { Europe) Limited ¢ CT Europe™ or
the “Seventh Acqutred Company™), 8 whally owned aubsidiary of China Telecommunications Comporation, firom China Telecommumnicalions Corporation for a
total purchase price of KAMTR2 7S thereinafter, refemred to as the “Seventh Acquisilion™).

Pursumnt 1o #n agresment entered into by the Compan and Bestioree Hobding on Septemnber 23, 2017, the Comparry disposed of the 100 equity
inerest m Chenggdu E-store Techiwlogy Co., Lid (CE-store™), a subsidiary of the Company, 1o Bestione Holding. The inatial ¢ onssderation For the disposal aff
the equity ierest i E-store waus RMB249, which was concluded based on the valustion of the equsty interests in E-store as of March 31, 2007, In addstion, an
adpustrent was inade Lo the mitial consideration to arrive al the fimal conslderation based on the change in the book vahse of the mel assets of E-store during
the period from March 31, 2001 7 to the completion date of the disposal. The control of the equity mterest m E-store was transformed 1o B Helding on
Ogtaber 31, 2007 The final consideration was mrived st RAMB2I 51, among which the initial consideration smamiing to RABI40 was received on
Moveamber 16, 2017,

Aunalysis of nsscts and libilities of the disposed subsidiary:

Coctokern 11, 3617
R
Current Assels
Cash and cash equivalenls &5
Accounts receivable, net 48
Prepayments snd otheer cirrent ssets &7
Mon-cmrent Asseds
Propoty, plant and equipment. pe 15
Intangshbe asxols 3
Current liahilites
Acoounts payable n
Agcneed expensss i other payables 7
Mell wssels disposal of 143
ian on disposal of a subsadiary -
e
RAM
Consideration receved and receivable 251
Met assets disposed of [AELY]
Galn on disposal 1

The gaimn o disposald of E-store hag been mebuded i imvestment incoane of the consoludated stasterment of comprdiensive moome.
Met cash mftow From disposal of a subsidiany -

7
AR
Corsideration received m cash and cash equivalients 244
Lesa: Cash and cash equivalems disposed of {65)
et cush inflow from disposal of o subsldisry 154

F0
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CHIMNA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARTES
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L. FRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, GRGANIEATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continuedy
O gandzation feentinued)

In Decemnber 2017, the Cornpany acquired the satellite ¢ommmimcations basiness (lhe “Salgom Business™) from Chima Televom Satellie
Commimication Co, Lid |, a whally etsmed subsidiary of Chima Telecommmicstions Corporation, of a pamchase price of RMB™), which has not been settled at
the end of the reponting pesiod. In the same month, E-mrfing Pay acqaired a 100% interest in Shamua Zheanghe Herngini Inarance Agent Limsted (“Zhonghe
Hengtai"), a wholly owned subsidiory of Shaaned Communications Services Company Lim#ted ¢*Shaanxi Comservice”, a company ultimately beld by China
Tebecommunications Corpormtion b, from Shaseni Comsarvice, l a purchase price of RAMBL T, which wae fillby paid by March 23, 2008 The ncquisitions of the
Sacom Basiness md Zhonghe Hengtal (collectively relemed to as the “Exghth Acquired Group™) are two separale ranssctions, which are collectively refemed
10 s the “Fighth Acquisition”,

Hereinafier, the First Acquired Giroam, the Second Aequired Giroap, the Thard Acquined Growp, the Fourth Acquired Company, the Fifth Acquired
Oroup, the Siah Acquired Busmess, the Seventh Acquared Comparny and the Exghth Acquired Growp are collectively refamed lo @ the “Acquired Oroups”.

Basis of presenistion

Since the Group and the Acquired Groups mre under common control of China Telecomimunications Coaporntion, the Ciroup's acquisstions of the
Acquired Groups have boen sccoumted for a8 8 conbination of entitses under comimon contred ina maneer similar to a poolng-of-interets, Accordingly, the
miwcts imd liabalities of these tities hive been aooounied for o historical amounts and the corsolidated fnanc il statements of the SGrop prior tothe
aciquisitions ane combined with the fmeial stataments of the Acduired Groups. The considerations for the acqpasition of the Acquned Groups are sieoumled
For as an equity Iranssction inthe comsolydated staternent of chemges in equaty.

The consolidated results of operations For the vesr ended December 31, 3005 and 2006 and the consolidated statement of Tinancial pesition as off
Decamber 31, 2016 a8 previcusly reported by ihe Group ad the conbined smownts presented i the consolidated financial statements of the Group to reflect
the acquisilion of the Fighth Acquired Group are set cut bolow:

The Grwnp
faa prﬂn:ullj i The Hf;h I;. &r-:
"!;\-'ﬁ A i B
Consolidated stabenami of conuprebensd ve b For the year ended
Decomber 30, 201 5:
Chperaling revenues 131,202 115 15817
Profit for the year 20, 142 1 2186
Consolidated statememt of comprebiens ve bconee for the year ended
December 31, 20046
Chreraling Feveniaes 353288 2 352,334
Profir for the year 18 108 14 18123
Consolidated statemami of Anancial position s of December 31,
06z
Tokal issets 65X 368 (£ ] [t
Total lisbilitics 136,073 137 336,210
Total cquity 6295 53 316,348
For the periods presented, all significant trewactions and balances between the Group mnd the Fighth Acquired Group hive been elnmated on
conmbinathon.
Fa14p
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CHIMNA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARTES
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L. FRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, GRGANIEATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continuedy

Merger with subsidiaries

Pursumnt 1o the resohition passed by the Company s sharcholders st an Extreordimasy General Meeting held on Febuary 25, 3008, the Compeny entered
imto merger agreements with each of the Following subsidiaries: Shanghsi Telecom Company Limited, Guangdong Telecom Companmy Lansted, Jisngsu
Tebecom Company Limited Zhejimg Telocom Company Limited, Anbub Teelecom Company Lisnited, Fugian Tebec oin Compary Limited, Jimg Telecom
Conpieny Limited Guangd Telocom Company Limited, Chonpging Telecom Company Limited, Sichian Telocom Company Limifod, Hubei Telecem
Comparny Limited, Hunan Telecom Compamy Landted, Haman Telecom Compary Limited, Guirhou Telecom Company Limited, Vannan Telecom Company
Limited, Shaanci Telecom Company Limited, Gansu Telecom Company Limdted, Qinghai Telecom Company Limited. Ningeia Telecom Company Limited
anid Kingimng Telecom Compaty Lended. In addition, the Compary ontered o menger agrecenent with Bejmg Tedecom on July 1, 2008, Purssant to these
meTger agreeiments, the Company menged with these subsidimrics md the xssets, linbilittes and business operations of theee subsidinrses were transfemed o the
Compamy s branches in the respective reghns.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(n) Bask of preparaifon
The: accomparying ¢ lidated fimancial datements hive been propared i accordance with Interationa] Financial Reporting Standands “IFRS" ) o=

imaed by the Inemational Acoounting Stendards Board (“LASB ") The consolidasted flamcial aataments of ithe Group lave been preparcd on a going comsem
rasis. These consolidated fnmncial siaterneonts were approved and mthorized by the Board of Directors on March 28, 2008

The consolidated finmcial stalements zre prepared on he historical cost basis as modilied by the revaluation of cestain available-for-sale equity
st irithes af fasr valise (Mote 2.

The preparatson of ¢ onsolidated fmancial in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgemmis, estimates and assumpiions that
nffert the application of policics and the reported smcamts of nescts and lialvilities md disclonmre of contingent 3sscts and lisbilitics ot the date of the
consolidaled fmmnd ial aatemenis and the reponed amounts of revenues and expenses during the reponing peried. The edtimates and associsted assumplions
are hased on historical cxperience and vamious ather faciors thet manegement belicves are reasomble unsder the circemstanoes, the resalts of which form the
b of muaking the judpemente about carrying values of assets and [iabililies that are nol readily spparent from other sorees. Actual resudts may differ from
those exlimales.

The estimates and imderlying asazmptions are reviewed on mn ongeing basis. Revisions to acommting estinabes are recognized m the persod m which
the catmate b revised if the revision affiects only that peried o in the period of the revision and futare poreds i the revision affecis both currend and fulre
periods.

Justgements mude by management in the mppliction of IFRS that have significant effect on the consalidated Nnanciad statements and major sources of
eslairealion uncefainty are descussed in Note 37.

() Basks of consolldatlon

The consolidated finmicial mamnals comprise the Congeamy and its subsidisrics and the Group's interests @ mssogincs.

A subsidary s an entity controlled by she Comparry. When fulllilling the Tollowing condtions, the Company has control over a entaty: (a) has power
over the imvestes, (b) has cxposure, or rights, 1o varniable retoms from its involverment with the investee, and {c) bas the ability 1o use its power over the
I estiee b alliect Uve amount of the investor's netums,

Wihen assessang wheller the Company has power over that entily, only substaniive rights (beld by the Comparry mnd other parties) are corsidered.
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L. BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {rontimued
() Easis of consolbdation (continued)

T T fal renalis of ssbsidiarics ane indhuded in the consolidated finmneial stotaros from the date that control commences urtil the date that comtral
crases, and the profit attributable to pon=controlfing inberests is separately presented on the face ol the consolidaled stalement of comprehensivg mcome = an
nlbocation of the profit or Boss fior the year between the pon-controlling interests mnd the equity heldens of the Comepay, MNon-contralling intereets represent the
equuty in subsidisrics not stiributable dinecily or indirectly to the Comparry. For each business combination, the (Group measures the non-contralbing mterests
wl the prcppnmrutmrc al the lcq.mlllm date. of fair valie of the asbeidimny s nd identifishle assete. Mon-controlling interests af the end of the reporting
period are p dinthe ¢ of financial pesition within equaty and consolidated statommit of chsages 10 equity, separatchy from the
nqtﬁrnfﬂtf,‘nuwru ® pauEty hnﬁdn Chumges in the Group's inderests in a subsidiary that do not resull in a loss of contro] are accounled for as equity
tratisactions, wherely sdjmtmenis are made Lo the amounts of contrallmg and nen-coatrolling irderesiz within consalidated equity to reflect the change n
relatve inferests, bl mo ady s wre made Eo goodwill and no gain or boss 18 recognieed. When the Group loses control] of a n.i:llllry # 5 acommbed for
i admalafl]wm inferest im st sbsidiary, with a pesulting gain or less being recognized in prodit o boss, Ay interest retaimed in that former
suibsadiary al the date whon control is lost is recognied af Far vahie and this amount & regarded as the Gar value on mitial rocoegnation of a fisancial assel or,
whien appropriste, the cost on imitinl recognition of an investnaent & an ssocinle of & jeint venture,

A associale is am entity, nol being @ subsidiary, in which the Gromp exerciees significant fluence, It et control. over iis mamagement. Sigualican
influence & the power Lo participate in the finmmcml and operating palicy decistons of the investee but is nol control or joint confrol over those policies

An investment in mn aesocinte is accounted for in the consolidated finmncinl stslements under the equaty method and is initially recorded of cost, adjusted
For amy excess of the Grop's share of the acquizition-date Cair vahoes of the mvestee’s nel identifisble ssets over the oot of the investenent (1 ary ) afler
reassesament. Thereafter, the investinent is adjusied for the Group s equity share of the post-acquisition changes in the assocmte's nel asscks and my
immpainment loss relating to the investment. When the Group ¢cases to have significant infloence over sn associate, it is scoombed for as o disposal of the enlire
imlerext i that mvestee, with a resulting gain or loss beng recognized m profit or boss. Any inberest retained in thal former investee o the dale when
sagnificant influence is lost is recognized ot fhir vadue and this smoant is regarded s the fir value on indtisl recognition of & firencis) meet

All sigmificart o onpany balinces md wansactions and unrealized gains s g from inbercompany ransactions ane climinated on corsolidation.
Unrealized gains mmismmg from iransactions with associales are elmmated to the exdent of the Group's interest in the entity. Ui lized losses are el |
the sanve wary B3 urscalized gains, bt oady 1o the extent that there is no evidanee of myrainment.

ich  Forelgn carrencles

The: s gty g comsolidated fmanclal gatenents se preseted m Remmmmni (CRME”)L The fuinctioml curenny of the Comipany s e subsidisnes
in mamnland China is RMB. The funciioml cumeney 1bti3nq:| s fonetgn operstions is the cumency of ihe primary economic anvironment i which ihe
foreign operations operate. Transsctions denommsted in currencies other than the flsctions] curency during the year ane tramsbated into the finctional
currency il the applicable rates of exchange prevailing on the trmsaction dales. Foareign currency monetary asicts wnd liabilities are translafed mio the
functicra] cumvency using the applicable exchange rates ot the end of the repeeting period The resuliing exchange differences, other than those capitalined as
consdrucion in progress (Node 200, are recognized @8 dntorne or expense in profit or ks For the periods presented. o exchange differemces were capilalized.

When prepanng the Group’s © lidied financial the resulls of operalions of thee Group's Foreign operations are irmsdsted mio RAME at
average rabe provailing during the year, Asects mnd lishilities of the Group®s foreign cperations are translated into RME st the foreign echange rates nuling st
the erd of the reporting period. The resailting exchange differentes are recognized in otber comprehensive imeanse and scarmulsted separtely in equity m the
exchange reserve,
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued )

(dy Cashaid cashoequivalesis

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash a1 bank and 5 had and Lime deposdts with ofigiral nesturises of three mestls o bess whien purchased. Cash
equinvalents are siabed of cost, which approximates fair value, Mone of the Group ‘s cash wnd cash equivalents is restricted #s 1o withdrnval,

(eb  Accounts and slher recevabiles

Actounts and othor recervables me mlmily recogriced al fair value and thereafler sated at amontised cost usng the elfecive inforesd method, bess
1I;:|m¢ for dowbifial debts (Mote 2injh mlees the effect of discounting woald be inmaterial, in which case they are stated at cost bess allowance for doubfial

i Investories
Inventonies consist of materials and supplies used m maintaming the wehece icalions netwiark and goods for resale. Imcentories are valued al cost
using the specific idonmilication method or the weighted mversge cost method, leas a provision for chsolescence,

Imventories are stated al the lower of cost and et reafizable valoe, Met realizable valee is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
lees the estimnated ¢osts of completion, the cstimated costs bo ke the sale s the related tag expenses.

(gl Property, plant and squipment

Propery . plant and equipment are iniiially rec onded 31 cost, bess subsequent acoumulated depreciation and mmpasmment lesses (Wote 2n)). The cost of an
sset comyprioes ils purchase price, sy dencctly attribotable costs of brimging the ssset (o working condition and lecatbon for its intended wse md the cost of
borrowed fimds used during the periods of constnaction. Expenditure inoured after the nsset has been put mto operntion, including cost of replacing pant of
such mn itom, is capialined onty when il inorsises the fiture eoonomic bencfits embodied @ the itom of propaty, plint and equipment and the cost cim ke
mermmed reliably, All other expendinge is expensed as it is incurred.

Asstts beld imder finamnce beases (Note 2 {m)) e amortized over the shorter of e lesse tonm and thear etmmated useflal lives on a straight-lne bassa. As
of Devamber 31, 2007, no asaet was held by the Group under finance leases (2006 nil)

Gining or kosss arising fom retirement or disposal of property, plant ond equipment me detenmined ar the difference between the net disposal procesds
mnd the camy ing mmeoent of the respective neset md are recognived = income or expense in the profil of less on the date of dispesal,

Deprocistion is provided to write off ik cost of cach assct over ils estimabed useful life on o siraight-line basis, afler taking ifo account its estimated
resichml value, as follows:

Sreprecistle e

[Rmany regs s
Baildings and wmprovemens St M years
Telecommumicatsons network. plant and eqaipment Ao Dvears
Fumiture, fixtre, motor vehicles snd cther equigmecee Sto 10 years

Wiere pams of & ibem of propeny, plant and equipment have didlere wseful lives, the cost of the tem is allocated on - reasonable basis between the
paris mul ench part is depreciated separmicly. Both the uscfinl Bife of an asset mnd fts residund valuse are reviewed anmuslby.

During the yerr. the Groap reviewed the estimat ed useflal lives of all propesty. plant mnd equipment and changed the depreciable lives of comporte
ilorrmalion system equipmant JPTV equipment and CDN equipment (included m telecomminications nebwork plant and equipment) [rom 10 years to 5
years, The effect of such changes in acocamting estirmates is set out in Mote 8,
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued )

() Lewie prepayiments

Lease prepay ments reproserd Land use rights paid. Lassd use rights are mitially carried al ¢osl or decrned cost and then charged to profil or less on a
straightline basis over the respective periods of the nights which rmange from 20 yeses 1o 70 years,

(I Constrnclion in progress

Construction m progress represents buildngs, belec pcal ions ¥ plat and equu and ather nql.lpruu'l and miangible assets wder
construction and pending installation, md is stated ot cost less impaiment losses otz 3ni), The cost of an #em comprises direct csts of constnzction,
capitalization of mberest charge. s foreggn exchamge diffirences on relabed borrowed fimds to the exent that they we regarded 22 an adjustiment to nierest
charges daning the periods of constmiction, Capitalizmtion of these costs ceases and the construction in progress is transfamed (o property, plant mnd equipment
mnd mntangible assets whsen the asset |8 asbatantially ready for fs inbended #se

Mo depreciation is provided in respect of constnsction in progress.

i Goodwill

Giondwill represents the excess of the cost over the Group's inferest in the fair value of the net assets soquired in the CDMA busmness (as defined m
Mote |07} acquisstica,

Gondwill is stated ot cosd less ary accumulated impasmment losses, Goodwill u:ﬂln:ﬂedlntu}pgg'mnsuuum!d is tested anmmlty for impainment
(Mebe 2ini) On disposal of o cash generating unit during the year, mry aitribatabbe amoun of the goodwill s inladed i ibe caloulation of the profit or lss on
disposal.

(ki Imtanglble msseis
The Groag s anlangible ssicls e prasn iy solbware.

Saoltware that is not an integral part of amy tangible aseets, = recorded o cost bess mabsequent accumalated amortization md mmpaimment losses (Note 2
1l Amorhzation of solbwiare 15 I:Illi.l:ﬂ}' ciloulated ona stiraggil-line basis over Lhe estrnated il Bves, nhich margge lFom three :;Ew: yoears,

I Investmeenis

[rvestrmeents in available-for-sale equity securifics ane carried i far value with any change in fair vaue being recogieed in other comprehensive
imome and accumulsted separately inequity. For mvestments m available-dor-sale equaty seoamtics, a signilicmt or prolonged decline m the fair value of that
i estment below its cost i conedened 1o be objective evidence of Empairment. When these imvestments me derecegnized or mpaied, the cumulative gain or
lems previoissly recognized m other comprehensne indome i recognized m profil or less. Investiments m unlished equity scaurdies thal do ol levoe a quobed
market price inan active markel mnd whose fuir value canmot be relinhly measared e stated af cost less impairment bosses (Note 3ni

(m) Lensing

Lenses are classified as finance lenses whenever the tenne of the bense transfier substantinlly all the risks s rewsrds of ovmership to the lessce. All
cther lenses are ¢lnssified as opersting lenses.

Asstts acquired under fnance |eases are indtiadly reconbed st mmeamits equivalent 1o the bower of the T valse of e leased asscts at the meepiym of the
lense or the present value of the minimurm lease payments (computed using the rate of mteres implicit in the lease). The net present value of the future
minimuem lease pavrents is recorded comespondingly as a finace lease obfigation.

Where the: Group b Uhe rght (o use the assols under oporating heases, payments mad e under the leases ane charged bo profit or loss in ogqual
i Flmsents over the aco g periods covered by the lense berm, exoepl whene an alemative basts is more representative of the patlem ol benefils 1o be
derived fromm the leased assal. Lease incentives peceived sre recognized in profit of less as an integral pant of the agaregale net fease payviments made.
Contmgend renlals are changed to profit or loss m the accoanting period inwhich they are incurmed.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued )

(iy  Impalrment
(i Impaiment of sccommts md olber receivables and myvestiments in equity seoorilics camied o oost

Accomts and other receivables and investments in equity securities cievied o cost are reviewed at the end of exch repoeting periodl 10 determane whether
there 15 chjective avidance of mnpaimeml Objective evidence of mipasment i hides shiervable data that cones 1o the altention of the Group about one o
mane of the following loss events:

- sighitficant finar il dilTiculry of the debtar o msser;

= a breach of contract, sisch 2= a defall or delmquency in mberest or principal paeonts,

= it becomimg probable that the debtor will enter bamkngpicy or other fimencinl reorgamization; and

- significant changes in the lechnological, markel, economic or kgal envirermeent it have an sdverse ellect om the deblor/ [ssuer.

The: mopasrenent loss for ac counts and obher receivabiles is measured as the difference betwoen he asset’s carying amount and the eslimated fulure cash
Nonwvs, discounted af the financinl asset's origmal effective interest rate where the effect of dscounting is material, and is recognized xs an experse in profit or
Tz

The impairment loss for mvestiments m equaty scourities camied ol cost i memsred as the dilference betweo the ase's camying amont @ the
cslimated futire cash Nows, discouted at the curront mesrieet rale of retum for a sendlar fnane ial issel where the effect of discoantimg is material, and is

recogmized s an expese in profil or loss,

Impamment losses for accounts and other recenables are reversed throughs profit o boss if in & subsequent penosd the amourt of the impaimment bosses
decreases. Impairment bosses for equity securities carmied af cosl are mot reversed.
(i) Imnpaiment of bong-lived s==ets

The: camrying amounts of the Group's long-hved assets, inchsding property, plat and equipmment, intangible assets with finite usefial lives and
comsnction in progress are reviewed pertodically to determine whether there 5 amy indiestion of Empasment. These assets are tested for mpainmst
whenever events or changes in ciroanstances indicate that their recorded camying amoomts may not be recovernb e, For goodwill, the impairment tesimg is
performed mmmily ot each vear end.

The recoverable mmount of an assel or cash-generating unit i3 the greater of its fair vahoe less costs of desposal and value m use. When an asset doss net
generale cash flows largely independent of these fram other assets, the recaverable amomt is determined for the smallest group of assets thit genemtes cash
inflows independently (e 3 cash-genersting umit). In determining the vahie in we, opooted fimire cash Mows poverated by the assets are discounbed 1o their
present viloe using a pre<lax discoumt rate tat reflecls cument market arsessments of 1me vabee of meoney and the risks specific to the asset for which the
catimates of future cash flews hve nod boen adjustied. The goodwall srssieg from a business combiration, for e gurp ese of impairment testing. is allocsted to
cashegmernling imits that are copecied o benetit from the synorgies of te combmatson.

A impasnmend loss i recognized i the carmying amount of an weset of ils cash-generating unil exceeds its estimaled recoverable amoml Impasment
loss b pecognized as an eopenie in profit of loss. Impasnment loss recogmped in fespect of ¢ash-peneraling units 1 allocated first ba reduce the ¢anving
mcnmt of mry goodwill allocated 1o the umits and then to reduce the carying amomts of the other assets m the wt igroup of wnis) on s pro rets b

The: Ciroasp nesgsses at the end of cach reporting period whegher there is sy imdication that = inpaimment less recognized for an @sset in prior years mny
i fornger cxiet. An impairment loss is reversod if there bas boen a Brvorable change i the estimates ied 1o detormine the recoverable amount. A subsequent
increase @ the recovernble amounl of an sssel, when the circumstances and events that led to the wribe-down cense 10 exisl, is recognived & = incone 0
prodit of loss. The reversal s reduced by the smsmt that would hane been pecegnized as deprecintion and amortization had the write-doun pol otdured. An
wnpaanmenl loss in respect of goodwill = not reversed. For the v ears presented, no reversad of impar loss was recogmized in profit or loss.
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.
L]

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued )

Heveiie recognitian
The revenise fecogrmtion mcthods of tse Group ane as follows:

i
iy

tikiy
(i)
v

vy

(i)

Volee usage foe b recognased & tee service {8 provideed.

Fees received for wirclme installation chirges for pervods prior to Janaary 1, 3012 are defred and recognazed over the expecied customer
retationshig period. The dircet costs assod fabed with the installation of wireline services ane defierred to the extent of the install stion foes and
amortized over the sume expected customer relationship pericd. From 2002 cnwands, since the amounts of Fees received and the associated diect
costs incurred are insignificant. the fees and assoisted direct costs are mol deferred. and are recogmared in profit or loss when received or
inciurred.

Monthly service fees are recognieed in the month duning which the sorveces are provided 1o cusbomers.

Reveme from sale of prepaid callmg Gards are recogniced 2= the cards are used by costonmers.

Revenuse derived from mformation and application services ore recopnized whe the services me provided to custonmers.

Kevense from mfonmation and applcation sorvices m which no thind party sorvice prosaders are imeolved, such as caller display md Intermet data
center services, are presented on 8 gross basis. Reveres froen all other information and applicalion services are presented on either gross of et
bsis based on the assessenent of each individual srrangement with thisd partees. The following factors indicale that the Group is scling as a
principal in the srangements with third parties:

il The Groasp is primeriby responeible for providing the applications of services desired by custormers, mnd takes responsibility for fulfillment
of ordered applications or services, inghoding the scceptability of the applications or services ondered or purchased by customers;

1] The Group takes title of the imventory of the applicaticns before they ave ordered by customers;

iy The Growup has risks mnd rewards of ownership, such &= risks of loss for collection from customers afler applicstions or services are
provided b customers:

ivd  The Group has lstitude in cetablishing eelling prices with customers:;

v The Group can modify the applications or perform pant. of the senaices;

vi) The Growsp has discretion in eelecting suppliors used to fiallill an order; and

vith  The Groap determines tse pature, type., chametenistics, or spocifications of the applications o services.

If masjonity ol the mdkcators of risks and responsibilitics exisl i the ammngements with third perties, the Cirogp is acting as a primcipal and have
mm o th significand risks and rewands sseos inted with the rendering of services or the sale ol spplications, and revenues for these sarvices

o a gross basis. I majanity of the indicators of risks and resporsabilities do nat exisl i the srangements with third paties, the
ﬁm.lpll Acting 2% an agent, 8 revenues for these services me recognized on a net basie

Kevense from the provision of Tntemet and telec commamicalions netwiork resource services wre recognized when the services age provided o
CIEElOTETS.

Intercommertion fees from domestic md foreign belecommmmications operators are receanized when the services are rendered »: mesawred by the
minubes of iraffic progessed

(vitl) Lesse income from operating baases is rec ognized over the term of the lease.

{ix)

Sale of equiprment is recognized on delivery of the equpasent te customers md nllmlrw:lplfurt risks mnd rewards of ownership and titke have
been transfemed to the customers, Bevenie from ropair and maintenance of equipment is recogmized when the servace i3 provided (o customerss,
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L BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcontinued)
(o) Revenue recognition (continoed)

The Ciroup ofiers promsotional packapes, which imvelve the bundled sales of temminal equipenent (mobdbe handsets) md telotonenmim cations servioes, o
oustomers. The tol] contracl consideration of a promotional package is allecated (o revenmics generated from the provision of Lelecomimimications senioes
mnd the sabes of lerminal oquigenent usang the residual metlod. Under the residual mcthvod, the io4al contract consideration of the srangement is allecaled o
follows: The imdelivered component, which i the provision of teleconmumications services, & mezcured o fir value, md the remainder of the contract
comsiderntion is allocated to the deliversd component, which is the sabes of berminall equipment. The Group recegnizes reveniss genemabed From the delivery
and sales of the terminal equigrment when the title of e terminal equipment is passed to the customens wheneas revenues penerated From the prov ision of
tedexcomurmingcations services ane recognized bazed upon the achuml usage of such services, During each of the vears in the three-year period ended
Drevamber 31, 2017, a substaniial portion of the total contract consideration 1= allocated 1o the provision of ebecomimemications services sim e the temuinal
equmment is typically provided free of charge or at n nominz] smoumnt to promoe the Group's core business of the provision of telscommumnications services,
and the Tair value of the telecomenmicaion services approaomabes the total conlract comiideration.

iph  Advertising and promotion expense

The costs for advertising snd promoting the Group s teleconmumications services ore expensed a8 moumed. Advertising mnad promotion expense, which
i it huded in selling, general and administrative exporscs, was RMEB19.284, KMB1 7,070 and KMBIA,072 for the years ended Decamber 31, 201 5, 2016 md
2017 respectively, mmong which, the costs of termanal equipment offered as part of a promotions] package o our ostomess For free or o2 8 nomiml smourd o
profiote thse Groups telocomemmication service amoimnied o EMBI 1620, RMB#2,370 and RMBA, 707, for the yesrs ended Decernber 31, 2015 2006 anid
Hi17 respectively.

fgd Mol Bnance cosly
et fimamce costs comgrise mierest income on bank deposits, interest costs on borrowings, mnd foreggn exchange gnins md losses. Inlerest income from
bk degressits 18 pec cgniced a2 11 accrues wsing the effoctive interest method

Irlerest costs mcurred m connection with borrowimgs are caloulaled usmg the effective interest methed and are oxpensed a8 moamed, exoept toithe
exhent that they wre capitalined as being dinectly attributnble tothe construction of an assel which necessanily takes n adwiantial period of time to get ready for
s miended use,

(rk  Research smd developmmni expense

Restarch and development expendinere is expensed as incwred. For the vears awded Decernber 31, 2005, 2016 and 2007, research snd development
expense was RMEBTI2, RAMBES and RMBL, 088, respectively.

(5] Faployes beneliis
The Ciroap’s contribations to defined ¢ ontribudion retirement plans administensd by the FRC govermment and defined contribution retirement plans
admimstered by imdependent external paties are recognized i prolit or loss & mcured. Funther information i set out in Mote 30

Compenslion cxpense in respect of the stock. mpprecintion rights grnted i sccied as a charge to the profit or loss over the applicable vesting peried
based on the fair valse of Ube stock agprecistion righte. The Hability of the scerued compersation expense is re-measianed 1o Tair valiee al the end of esch
reportng period with the effect of changes in the far value of the liabality charged or credited to prafit or less. Further details of the Group's stock
mpprevistion rights scheme e sef oot in Mose 33,
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued )

iy Government grants
The Group’s govermmenl grants are mamnly relaled to the govemment leans with below-market rate of interest.

Government grants shall oaly be recognized mmtil there is ressonablie asarance that:
(i) the Growp will comply with sll the conditions atinching to them; and
(i) the grants will be received.

Government grants fial compensate cxpenses intumed ane recognized in the consolidated staternent of comprehensive income in the same perods n
whach the exponses are moamed.

Ciowernment grmts relating 1o sssets mre recognized in deferred revenue and are credited to the consolidated sistement of comprehensive intoane on &
straight-line basis over the expecied Lives of the relabed sssels.

() Interest-braring berrewings

Imerest-bearimg borrewings e recognized initinlby sl fhir vakie less stirbutable ransaction cosia. Subsequent o mitial recognition, interest-heasing
bawrowings are slabed @ amonzeed cost with sy difermce between the wmount mitially recognized and the redarplion valie recognieed in profit or loss over
the period of the bormowings, together with ay interest, wsing the effective mlerest method.

vl Accoumis and other papabies

Accounts mnd other payables are mmitially recogniced ot f2or valee and thereafier stated . amontized cost unless the effect of disc oumtmg would be
ienmaterial, in which case ihey are stated st cost.

iwl  Provisions and contingent Habilliles

A provision is recognized in the consclidated statement of linanciad pesition when the Growp has a legal or constructive cbligation as n reslt of 2 past
evenl, and it 18 probable that am cutflow of econonne benelits will be requined ta sattle the obligstion and a reliable estimabe can be made of the amount of te
obligation. Where the time vahse of money is matenial, provisions are stated af the present valoe of the expendifture expected to seitle the obligntson.

Where il is not probable that an mutflow of economic benefits will be required, orthe smount cannaot be estimated relisbby, the obligation is disclosed as
a coitingenit lability, unless the probabitite of cotfllow of evonomas benefits is remole. Possible obligations, whose egstence wall only be confimmed by the
DCOWTETCE OF Nem-ocoumence of one or more fuliere events, are also disclosed a8 contingent linbilities mnless the probability of catflow of economic benefils is
rermede

(x)  Vabuesdded tax

Unider cirrent FROC ta rules and regalations, cutputl VAT rabe for basie telocomeminications services (inthuding volce commimnication, lese of sale of
metwork resources) 15 11% whale the output VAT rabe for value-added telecommunications services (mehuding Internet acoess services, short and multmedia
s aging eervices, ransmission and application service of dhectronds data sl mformation) is 6% and the cotput VAT for sabes of lelecommumications
terminads and equipment iz | 4 Il VAT rale depends on the type ol services received and the aseets purchased as well & the VAT rate applicable to a
pesilic industry, and ranges from 38600 17%

Cutput VAT is escchaded from operating revenues while imput VAT, which is incurmed s a resull of the Company s receipt of services md purchases of
lickec Acalions oy ard materials, is excluded from operaling exponses or the originad cost of equipment purchased mnd can be netbed agains the
citpi VAT, mwivieg ol the net arnousd of VAT recoverable or payable. As the VAT cbligations are borme by brnches and subsidiaries of the Comparsy, ogust
mnd culpul VAT are set aff a8 brmches and subsidianies levels, and 1be net amount of VAT recoverable or payable of branches and subsadiaries are mol. offet
ol the consol idation leved. Such net mmoamt of VAT recovernble or puyable is recorded i the line item of prepaymeents and other current sssels mnd aconaed
experses and ollver payables, respoctively on the face of consalidated af fmancial posat
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES {contlmied})
(v) Income tax

Income tux for the year camprises comment Lz and movermend m deflemed G assets and lisbilities. Income tax i recognired i profil o loss excepl to the
extend that i relsies to items recognized in other comprehensive iscome, or directly in equity, i which case ihe relevant mmmets of tax mre recogmized in
other comprehensive mcome or directly m equity respectively. Current B & Lhe expected Lax payable on the Laxable moome Tor the yor, using L rales
enacted or substantively enacted ol the end of the reporting pericd, md amy sdivstiment to ax payable in respect of previous years. Deferred tax is provided
g the balimee shea Hability mcthed, providing for all temporary differeices betwen the carying amomnts of assets and labiliides for finmneial reporting
maposes and their tax bases, The ameant of deferred tax is cadoalated on the bass of the eoncted or substanlively eracted tnx rmes that are expected foapply
in the period when the asset & realized of tee Hability i seitbed The effect on defiamed tax of aane changes in b rates b charged of ereditod to profit or boss,
micopl for the effect of a change @ tac rate on the camying amount of deferred tax ss=ets and lishilities which were previmusly recognined in other
comprefiensive income, in asch case the offect of'a change it rate is also recognized n olher comprehensive income.

A defomed tax agset 18 necognzed only 1o tee extent that @ b probabie (bt fisre taxsbie meome swill be available against which the asset can be
utilized, Deforred b assets are reduced 1o the extent that i i no lenger probable that the reloled o benedit will be realized.

Defierred tae linbililics mre generadly recognized for all twabile temporey differences. Deferred tax linbilities are recogmized for b le tem porary
dilTerences associaled wilh imestmemis in subsidsaries and associates, eeopt where the Group i sble 1o coantrol the reversal of the lomporasy difTerence md ot
i# probable that the temporry difference will not reverse in the foreseesh e filure

(z}  Drividends
Dividends are recognized as a liability @ the period in which they are declaned.

(ax} Helated parties
(=) A person, of a clese member of thet pervon's Thmily, is related to the Group if that persom:
[F}] has control o jomt conlrol over the Groug,
@iy has sgmificnt milsmoe over te Group;, or
(i) =a iber of the key = I | of the Group or the Group's parent.
) An ety is related to the Group if @y of the Followang conditions applies:
i EIILT};w vl the Groop are members of the smme group (whach mesns thet each parent, subsidinry md fellow subsidiary i rebabed to the

(i} The entily i& & asiociale of poinl venlure of the Group (of an asociate o poind venture of a member of a group of which the Grop s a
meemberk or the Girowup is an sssociate or joint venture of the entity (or an sssociste or joint venhare of a member of n group of which the
sty is a memnber;

{iiy  The entity and the Group e joid ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  The enlity is a joint venture of & third entity and the Groap is mn associnle of the third entity; or the Group is o joinl venhure of a third
eritaty aind Alve entity s an associale of the thard entity;

() The entity & controlled of jesntly controlled by a person ddentified in (a)x

[L51] A person identified in (ak(0) bas significant ndluence over the entity or is @ member of the key manzgement persomnel of the entity {orof a
parenl of the enbity),

Clese members of dae Fanily of a person are those Tanidly meinbers who may be expecied to milsence, or be influenced by, that penson n their dealmgs
with the enhity,

F-1%

163/213



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO000OO00D0DO000DO000nDOodnoE.s27)
oOoOooodn

Table of Contents
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L. BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {rontimued

(ab)  Segmental reporting

An operating scgmont i a cormponenl of an ol that engages m business aclivities from which revemics are camed and expanisics are incurred, and is
idemtilied oo the basis of the imtemal financial repaorts I:Iu are regubarty reviewed by the chiel’ cperating decision maker i order to allocate resource and sssess
performance al the segnienl. For the periods p nenl has d inved thal the Group his one operaling segmont as Ue Grou s only engieed in
the integrated tebecommunications bwlrhm.fhtﬁwp s wescts |ocated outside mainland China mnd operating revemies derived from activities mutside
mainiland Chira are less tean 1006 of the Groups sssets and operaling revermes, respectively. Mo geographscal area infommation has been presested as such
mneamt is immmaterial. Mo single extema] oustomer accmints for 10%e or more of the Groug's opomaling revenaes.

3 APPLICATION OF REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

Ini the cument year, the Group has applied, for the first tme, the followmg amendments 8o IFRS issued by the JASB that are mandatonly effective for
the cuerent year;

= Amendments to 1A% 7, “Disclosure Iniative™
Amendments 1o LAS 12, “Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses™
Ametdrents to IFRS 12 as part of the Annual Improveinents bo IFRSe 20014-2016 Cyele
Anrrabmerts to 1AS 7, © Dizclonere Instalive™

The: amendments require mn entity 1o provide disc losares that ensble users of financial stalements (o evaluate changes in liabilities arsing firom
firancing sctivities, melud mg both cash aml poan-cash changes.

Specifically, the samendmenis require the Tollowing lo be disclosed: (3) changes from limamcng cash Nows: (1) changes arsing from oblaming or losng
control of subsidinries or other busi  Aiih the effect of changes in foreign exchange mbes; (ivh changes in fair vabues; and (v) other changes.

A reconcilistion between the opening and closing balmces of these items is provided in Mote 32, Consistant with e tramsition provisions of the
mnvensdments, the Group has not disclosed comparative mxformation for the prior year,

Aypart from the additiond disclosire as requared by Amendments to 1AS 7 in Note 52, the application of the sbove smendments (o [FRSs has had no
material effect on the Grosp's copsolidated finmcial stalements.

The: Grroup has not yet applaed sy pew and revised standsed or interpretation thit ks not yet effective For the cusvent v (Mole 380
F20
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4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

TEME . THME
Cazh al bank and in hand 2147 17,763
Time deposits with origmal maturgy within three months 2470 b.647
24617 19410
£ ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET
Actounts receivable, nel are analyzed o Tallows:
—tte
m EE 3T
(restane)
Acgounds peceivable
Third partics 22,5958 23,762
China Tebecam Group {i e 1302
Chana Tower 10 5
Cather telecomrmmications operabors in the PRC i il
24,857 25,938
Less; Allowance for doubtful debis 13.403) G
5 bl

1 45 o

[l

Mike;
(i} China Telecommmuarications Corpomtion tagether with its subsidiaries ather than the Group sre referred o rs “China Telecom Growp™,
The follewing table mprenarizes the changes in allowarce for doubtfial debis for each of the years i the theee-vew perind ended December 31, 2017:

f mar el e Thorsms e 31
I 11 ST
Hm TERE THIE
et wemuted)
At begirming of year 2479 208 N402
Iivpairment Bosses for doulbtful debes 2172 208 1,961
Accoumds receivable written off 5[ T:I.jl !I TE: 1,52
Ao of year PR 3402 R
e ——— ——

Ageing anabysis of accomts receivable from tebephione and Internet subserib ors based on the billing dates & as follows:

Dirtomber 51,

E g E 7

o WA
Curent, within 1 memith 903 9323
1 10 3 mwwiths 179 1807
4 1o F2 months 1,763 1,780
hore tham 12 menths Tal 1B
14,604 14,385
Lgss: Allowvande fior doutaful dels (242T) (2603)
12269 11 985
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£ ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. NET (contimsed)

Apetng anabysis of actoumts receivable from other telec ommunications operatons and mberprase oustomers based on date ol rendering of services s a8
Fodlows:;

Decmubior 11
S
TR THAE
(restuted)
Current, witkin 1 month 1,671 2]
1 1o 3 mwonnths LA0s 1973
4 10 12 montls 2360 p.o
hdore than 12 months e LR
10,171 1L33%0
Less: Allowance Tor doubaful debis (975 {1 13%
8.1 lk1l]
Apeing analysis of accomnts receivable that are not impaired is as follows:
Dl b 31
“EE. Wi
RS THME
(restted )
ol past de 10418 196338
Less than | month past duse 1180 L1518
I 1o 3 meonths past due BT ]
Amounls past due 1&7 Zd'.fi
Eli-lﬁi T2 (0
6 INVENTORIES
it emmbier 31,
frest wind )
Manerials and supplics L2 BTl
Gonds for resale 5% 2082
106 4138
7. PREPAYMENTS ANDIOTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Decomibar 31,
ol T
RAH HAME
i eababed s
Amoirts die from Chima Tebecoe Gaoup e T4
Amoures due From Clhina Tower 237R 2152
Amousts due from olber teleconimumcslions operstors in the FROC Ex] kL
Propanmeemis n ¢ oot tion with construction work and oquipment purchases 2661 1542
Prepail expenses and deposits L5 3Ass
Value-added lax recoveruhle 3197 7186
Cither receivables 4.518 5.619
10508 111
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CHIMNA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARTES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(AN Benminb] smounts in millions, exoept per share dala and evoepd otherwise stated)

8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFMENT, NET

Farsimare, lxurs,
Tebrimsip an i st sen postee el les
Bailingy wd wetwstli lans ared wthe
mprave ey o Py e wpupm e Tatal
FME RME RAME RME

CostDeemed cost:
Balmce 21 Jamumry 1, HH6, a3 previoush repored aT.450 210,257 20607 a6, 123
Adjusted for the Eighth Acquisition (Mote 1) - 6l 3 sl
Balmce a1 January |, 20406, a5 restaled 9T 458 sI%318 2610 46,387
Additions L) 1,333 4h0 2470
Transferred from construclxn n progress 2453 TE2IR? 1,739 82,079
Disposals (754 (T4,976) (1,753 {77483
Disposal of & sibsadiary - - (3} kA
Reclassification &7 (128} 41 —
Balanie af December 31, 206, a5 resiated S04 B25 550 o004 P43
Additions 383 352 410 1525
Transferred from construction in progress 1,867 27120 1.7 0,503
Disposals (709} (58,719) (1.936) {71,364
Despesal of o mibsidiary — (33} — {33)
Roeelassi e ation (18) 272 200 -
Balane ol ecember 31, 20T 1] 332 SE24AT3 30585 OT4, 350
Accurmmlated depreciation and impaimment:
Balmce 21 January 1, 28, us previously reported A7, 102) (304,015 225 (3712443
Adpusted for the Eighth Acquasition (Note 1) — [EsY (4] [E1N]
Bialmce 1 Januery 1,20046, as restaled (47, 142) (304,084) (21.227) (¥72.3483)
Drepreciation and impairment charge fof the y e (4.527) (56,056) (L26T) {63, 750)
Wrislen back on disposals 81 0,004 1652 T2
Disposal of 3 subsidiary - - 2 2
Rechmssification (700 R (13 —
Balzmee af December 31, 2006, 85 resiwted (31,0081 (490,90 Ty 21 853y (545 TRE)
Drepreciation and impairment charge for the v ear (4,326) (63,003) (1145} (70,374
Wristen back on dispoeal 20 [ERLE 1459 G002
Desposal of a subsidiary - 17 — 17
Beclessification 18 154 {20T) =
Balanee sf December 31, 207 (54, Ty [EEINEE] (3 360y (568, 115)
Mt book vahie nt Decanher 31, 2017 -Iﬁﬁﬁ 351 407 8224 JEH?
et book value at December 31, 2006, as restated R4 ELFA] 261 JghaTl

In arder bo expedite the consnaction of the new generation network and creale siate-of-the-art network experience, the Group resalved to accelembe the
upgrade and replacement of corporte infoamation system equipment, IFTY equipment and CDMN equipment in order o promeote the longdemm sustainable
development of the Group.

During the yenr, after reviewing the aurent condition of existing network equipment and assessing the impact of the evolution in felecommunications
technologies and ibe business development needs. the Company considered the estimated usefil lves of comporate infommaiion sy dem equipment. IPTV
equipmernt and TN equipment woald change from previoasty anticipated. As a ressll, the Group changed the estimated deprecinble lives of such equipment
froams 10 vears to 5 vears, which could more scowately and sppropristely reflect the changes i the Group's expedied conasmption pattem of econemic
benefits ambodied in these ssets.

The changes in s counling estimates are inplemeanted with eTect froam October 1, 20017, Effect of changes in depreciable lives is estimated to insrease
deprecimtion expense by approcimately RMBAL045 For the year ended Decamber 31, 2007, The effect of such changes in depreciable bves nepresents a
temporary difference, therefore does ot have any effect on the total deprecintion expenses of those sssets during the sssels” lives,
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9. CONSTRUCTIONIN PHOGRESS

Bislance 31 Janunry 1, 2016, w8 previcusly reported
Adjusted for Eighth Acquisition (Noge 13
Eislance 31 Janusey 1, 2006, a9 restated
Additiom

Tramsilerred to property, e and equipovent
Trmsfamed 1o miangible assets
Balice 3t Decombser 31, 3016, 38 restated
Additions

Tranklerred Lo property. plani and equipeent
Transfemred to intmagible pssets

Balawe of December 31, 2007

B, GOODWILL

Cost:
Cioodwill arising from scquisition of CDMA business

Theramsbion 11

HAME RAME

25023 .00

O October 1, 2008, the Jroup acquired the CDMA mobale comumanication busaness and relasled asscls and lisbilitics, which also inclsded the entire
equity interests of China Unicom (Macs) Compeny Limited (eumently keown as China Teleoom (Macau) Compary Liméted) and $490.3%5 equity ierests off
Unicom Huasherg Telecormmmications Technology Company Limited (currently known a3 Taryi Tebeeom Terminads Company Limited) icollectively the

“CDMA basiness”) from China Unicom Limsted and China Unicom Corporation Limiled dcollectively “China Unicom™ ). The perchase price of the businvess
combination was RAMES3, 200, which was fully settled as of Decernber 31, 2000 In addition, pursimni o the acquisition agreemenl, the Group acquired the
customer-relsled sssets and assumsed the customer-related |ishilities of COMA business for & net sett] amsent smeount of RMB3,471 due from China Unicom.
This armount was subsequently settled by China Unicom in 20059 Thee busaniess combination was sccounted Tor usig the purchase method.

The goodwill recognized m the bismess combination is attnbatable to the skills and techindcal talent of \he scquired business"s workforoe, mnd the
wynergics expocted 1o be achieved froen brtegratmg and combining the COMA mobile conmnumication business milo the Groap®s ieleconunimcations bas mess.

Faor the purpese of goodwill nmpairment testing, the goodwall arsang from the scquisitson af CDMA busmess was allogated 1o the appropriale cash-
genernling umit of the Group, which is the Group®s ledecomeminications business. The recoverable amsount of the Group®s elecommamicatsons business is
cstiirated based on the value i use model, which considers the Group®s fnandial budgpets covering a five-year penod and a pre-ta discourt rate of 9.8%
{20046: 9.4%) Cash flows beyond the fivesvear peried are projected 1o perpetity sl snmeal growth e of 1.5 AManag, perfonmned i tests For
the goothwill ot the end of the repedting periosd md detennimed that gesdwall was net impaired. Management believes any reasonably pwﬂ:lt change in the
key asmamplions on which the recoversble amount & based would nof cause i recoverable amound to be bess than camyng amount.

Koy mssumptions used for the valae in wse caloubtion made] are the mamber of aubsoribers, avernge revenie per mibscriber and gross margin
Mmnsgernent determined the member of subseribers, average revernie per asbscriber and gross mangin based on historseal trends and finand jal mionmation and

operational data,
F-24
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CHIMNA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARTES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(AN Benminb] smounts in millions, exoept per share dala and evoepd otherwise stated)

1L INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Heltw arn
HME
Cost:
Balace 31 January 1, 206 26,301
Additions Jad
Translerred from constiuction m proges 3,685
Desposals (5310
Bialmce at Devember 31, 2016 20818
Additions I75
Translerred from constmiction i progres 4,886
Dspesals (268)
Ditepossal of & mubsidiary {a
Balamce af December 31, 2007 34,550
Accunmilated amortization and firpaimment:
Balmce at January 1, 2006 (15,362)
Amortizmtion charge for the year (3,500
Wrishen back on disposals A8
Balmee at Devombser 31, 2016 (18574)
Amorimation chege Tor the year [ER-ELY]
Wristen back on disposals i
Dhspesal of & subsadiary ]
Balzmce s Decamber 31, 2007 !EIHI]
Mol ook value ol December 31, 2017 12391
Mt book value af December 31, 2006 11,244
1L INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
Dismmbier 11,

] Fok

(] A
Unlisfed equity investments, sl cost 36T MME
Share of pod-acquisiion changes i nel asels (1,775 [ Errd

34.572 35726
e ——

The: (iroup s inlerests in assogistes wre socoumied for under the equity method, Detaile of the Groop s principal aesocises are s fellows:

J.Irll_ll'ﬂl
ity
Dame sl tompany b Printipal srisities
China Tower Corpomtion Limited 2T.9% Comstnaction, maintenme and operation of telecommimications
toawers as well & mncillary Fecalities
Shanghni Information Investment Incorporation 4.0 Provision of inf: o bechmology conmltancy rervices
The above associates e eatablished and operated in the PRC and are nol traded on ey stock exchange
F-25
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1L INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continmed)

Surrmraneed e al information of the ‘e pringipal associabes md recand dhed 1o te carmy ing amcounts of milorests in s eclabes i e Groap's
consolidated fmmne lal stabemenis ane diﬂmbdow:

Chins Tower
o oe s
Limisnd
3016 01T
CAHTenl 385l A Aen 0517
Meon-nuETent nasets 21108 ool e
Chrrent linbilities 171 568 150,438
Mon-ousrent linbilities 14,548 44,7160
I FevEtiLes LER GRAGES
{Loss) / profit for te year 575) 1,503
Cither comprelsersive income For the vear - -
Total comprehensive moame for the yor {STE) 1,53
Daviderd rocerved from the associale - -
Reconciled to the Group™s inberests in the asseckaie
el asscts of the associale 125,552 127495
Mom-comirolling inberests of the associate - Ee
Group's effective imlerest in the sssociate I.%a 279
Giroup's share of net assets of the mssocinte 3502 315571
Adjustmen for the remaining balance of the deferred gain From ikt Tower Azsets Disposal (1.782) (1.580
Carry it amounl of the mssociate m ibe consolidated (inancfal statonsenis of the Group 33.247 33041
arghm Infmaiion
Inwestm i Incorporaton
b 2017
Chomen] assets o, R 7146
Mor-cuErent mesets §421 BAMD
Chirveril liabilides 5784 s5gis
Mon-narent linbilities 5,004 2673
Opreraling revenies 41 4313
Profit for the year 413 L]
Other comprehersive ncome for the year 24 x
Teotal comprehensive mcome for the vear 437 $8%
Davidend recerved from the associate @ a
Reconciled to the Group™s interests in the assockate
Ml assets of the associate 6,251 6,687
Mem-conirolling nberesis of the asseciate 1.840 {2004
Group's effective interest in the associste 24076 24.0%%
Group's share of net nssets of the associale 1,048 1,124
Carying amounl of the associale m ihe consodidated financial slatemsnis of the Group 1 0k% 1,124

Aggregate linancial infonmation of the Group's aesocintes that are nod mdividually material is disclosed below:

The Giroup*s ghare of profit of these nesocinies

The Group's share of aher comprelsersive income of these asoaciates

The Group's share of total comprehensive mcome of these associales

Agpfegate camying amodnd of these associates m the consolidated lirancial statoments of the Grogp

B2

B | BB
EEH:%
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13 INVESTMENTS

s

HAE WA
Avwnilable-for-sale listed equsty secanlics [l st
Cither unlisbed equity Evestments 1] 185

1515 11584

I4,  DEFERRED TAX ASSETE AND LIABILITIES

Oibser umnlisted equiry oy estments mnly represent the Growp s various mberests in private enterprises which sre maindy engiged in the provision af
i fiain ures construction services. informalion technology serices md Infemet contenla,

The components of deformed tay assets and defierred tax labilities recognieed in the consolsdated statamo of financial position and the moyemeots are

s fod lowws:
pre Liskiitie Plet Flulunse
FME EHME = BEMB HME FAE AME
Provisions and mmpairment losses, pramarily for doubiful debts 1626 1531 — — 1626 1,531
Property, plint mid equipment, s others w3410 (AT (4416)  (L00Th (1,006
Drefermed revenaes and metallation cosis T 120 (32} (83%) 12 i3
Available-fir-sabe equity securities = 2 (69 (260 _ (168 _ (268
Dreferved vax asseta{liabilitics) 5479 5061 (BD01 (4,770 (L531N 1
N S
-
v i it ed
Ralanew o Wt ol Hal wvrs
Jumury 1 + | ——
o] R cami v 218
TIBE
Pravisions and mmpairment losscs, prmarily For doobifl debts 1,156 135 1,21
Property. plant md equipment. sl others 1015 M 1,540
Defered revonises and msallalion cosls 4K (335 il
Awailable-for-mbe equity seaurities L) (165 [
el deforred Lax assels 2147 487 23
Hesagriaed
in
von vabid wrd
Flalanse ut P | Fial wnre a2
Jamuary I, P p—— Drecemb 31,
ﬁll o H1E
Provigicns and ampairment losses, primarily for doubtful debts L3 240 1,531
Froperty, plant md equipment, mnd others 1,368 (2575) 11.0046)
Drefermed revienes and metalbation costs ] (25 a3
Awsilable-for-mbe equity seaurities (3265 a7 (265
et deforred Lax aemels ] | paym o] |
Il.lmlpl.lrl
1‘1.;“&1
Halante o o gl wl Tal e a8
r— o pt b Dol 11,
—doet ncome oy
RME RME FME
Provislons and impairment losses, prnarity for doobifil debes 1531 o5 1626
Property, phnt and equipment, s others RG] (3,000 ATy
Defermed revenaes and metallation cosis B (1a) b
Avalable-for-sake equir; secunlics {2690 140 :Iﬁ_!l','l
Mt defierred tax assela lisbilitbes) 201 [ B2E) 12511
- L1
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15 SHORT TERM AND LONG- TERM DEET AND PAYABLE
Short=term debt conmprises:

Loams from banks - imseoured

Super shorl-term commercial pap s — imeecuned
Cither loans - unsecured

Lesases Fronn Ching Telotom Group — unsetaned
Tatal short-berm debt

Dwwrmiban 11

16411 18563
1B9% 18,745
0 150
5271 1948
0780 SLSSE
L L P

The weighted svemge micrest rate of the Group s totsl shor-ierm debit 5 of December 31, 2016 and 201 7 was 1. 3% per s and 40% per aneam,
respectively. As of December 31, 2007, the Group's loams from banks and other losns bear miorest ol rates ranging from 3.5% 00 739 (2006 3.5% 10 44%)
per muuEn, 3 we repayable within one vean & of December 51, 2017, super short-term commmercinl pagers bear interest ol rles ranging from 4.1%80 4.2%
(2004 3% to 2 9%4) per anmuan aned wies repaid by March 19, 2008; the loans from China Telocom Group bear mierest af rele of 3.5%( 2006: 3.5% Lo 4. 1%

per anren and we repayable within one year,
Lomg-tem debit and payable comprises:

Vi i e
Imtvwved ratwn and flnsl msrisy ﬁ
[ HAW
Bank leans — umsecured
Remminbi dencminated (Mote (i) Imteres rates manging from 1.08% to 7.04% per mmen wilth maturities theough 2035 2243 9148
US Dollars denoiminated Iemerest rabes ranging froms 1,009 to 8, 30% per e wilh maturitics through 2048 6 L]
Ero denommated Interest rate of 2 3(%s per srmuen with matorises through 2082 i) 28
Cither cusrencies denominated PRI - ey, )
aa5s 9,741

(ler boins - imsecured
Renmuinba denosmated 1 ]
Amount dise 1o Clilna Teecom

Group — unseoared
Deferred consideation of Mobile

Boetwirk Acquisition — Renmanbi

denominated (Mot (5)) 61,710 -
Losns lrein Clina Telecom Group

= unseoured
Riemminbi denominated (hote (il — 40,000
Total bong-term debt md payable T4 49,742
Less: Current portion (L2 {1.146)
Mon-nurent portion 3370 48500

F-28
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15 SHORT TERM AND LONG TERNM DEBT AND PAYABLE (continmed)

Motes:

(ip  The Group cbiained long4emm RME denominsted govenment koams with below-market inferest mate rmging from | .08%a 1o 1.20%2 per anmum through
banks (the “Low-inberest Loans™) The Group recognized tle Low-intones Loans at their fair vakic on indtlal recognition, and acereted the discaunt 1o
prodit or bose wsing the effective interest mte method. The difference between the fair value and the fice value of the Low.mberest Loans was recognized
s poverrenend granis in deferred revenwe at imitia] recognition (Meke 18,

(i1} Represenied the remaining balmce of the defemred considerntion pay able to China Telecommmunications Corporalion in respect of the scquisition of
cerain COALY neiwork asscts and assocfaed linbilities, which were held by China Televommunications Corporation ihrough network brane s focated
im 50 provinces , mumicipalitics and mitonomoes regicns i the PRC (hercinnfer refierred 1o ms the * Mobile Wetwork Acquisition”L The Company flly
repaid the defeved consideration in Nevember md Decembstr 2007, The Comparey paid inferest on ﬂlt datl‘tmd pymmH b China Telecomemmications
{‘u'puimihu]f-}m‘l} mitervals and the interest acones from the day following the complets Lobile ™ ¥ Acquisition, The mberest rabe
in set at ® % basis points pmlummﬁtrlthd of the $-vesr super AAA raled Medivn Tenm MNobes mc-sl mulhl nl:Esbt-:lh' the Mutional Association
of Financial Market Institus % betone the campletion date of the Mobile Netwiark Acquisition and would be adpasted once o y e in
wsccordmnce with the list yield of the ®-year super AAA rted Medngm Term MNoles most recently published by the National Association of Financial
Market lnsiitutional Imvestors st the end of each year. The mberest rate Gor 200 7 was 4.11%

(i) The Groap obinired long-4em RMB dencemninsted loans with the interest mabe of 3.8% per smum froam China Telecommunications Corporation on
Decernber 25, 2007, which are repayabile withan 3 to 5 veara.

The aggregale mabumises of the Group's long-temmn debl and payable subsequent to December 31, 2017 e as follows:

2018 1144
2009 1088
lie. |} 21044
o] | 83
2022 20,944
Thereafter 4,437

4 T2

The Giroup s shor-term and long-term deb and payable do not contain ey Firancial covenants. As of December 31, 2006 and 2017, the Group had
urnitilined committed credit facilities anounting to RMEB1G1 229 and BEME 150, 793 respectivedy,

6 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

é - ,ﬁi:

i et | ERE
Third partics M7 81324
China Telecom (Group 21,331 12682
China Tower e 2,611
Other telecommambtalions operators m the PRC 120 Tink

122405 119.521

Amoimts due o China Telecom Croap and China Tower are payable in accordance with contractuad tems which e similar to those terms of fered by
third partics,

F-20
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17, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABRLES

— Decembemdl,

- £l
o] _ﬂ}.!r =

irensely Ham
Amounks due Lo China Tebecom Groap i 1815 1,838
Amours due to China Tower BT 1374
Amourts due bo olher teleconsmumications opemtors in the FRC al 59
Acerued expsmses Gy 21,297 nEGE
Valuc-added lax payable ToT (L]
Customer deposits and receipls in advance 65418 69015
1,173 8,65

Mokes:

iy Amouds due 1o China Telecom Grop s of December 31, 2017 inchudes the consideration of the Eighth Acquisition amount ing 1o EMBET, among
which the comstderation of the stquistson of Zhonghe Henghai was fially paid by March 23, 2018, while the remaining ¢onssderalion payable m respect
of the scquisition of the Satcmm Basiness had not been fidly paid of the end of the repofting period.

(i) Acomed expenses a8 of December 31, 201 7 inghudes the ungaid pontion of constderation of the scquisiin of non-controlling interest of 8 aabsidiary of
the Group amounting bo RME] 19, which has been fully settled on Januzry 23, 2008,

18  DEFERRED REVENUES

Diefierred reventies masnly represent the umeamed portion of installation fees for wireline services receved from customers, the aniised portion of callng
cards, and the tmamortized portion of govenment grasts (ote 15,

w11
TomE e
Balmice 31 beginning of vear 2482 3858
Additions for the year
— calling cards 75 0
— jpovermnen granks 1,454 =
L2347 3}
Fuedugtzons for the year
= mmorivation of instalaion foes (250)  (h0E)
— wssage of calling ¢ards (6281 (384
— minoriasation of goverrenent grams = b, |
Balnce @i end of year 2358 3061
Represmling:
— current poriig : L2153 123

S L%
5
3558

Ievc liadbed i other nesets are primarily capitalized dirct costs aseocinted with the mstallation of wircline services. As of Decemdber 31, 2016 and 2017,
the unamorticed portion of these cods was RMEIAT and RMB22E respeclively.

F-30
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19.  SHARE CAPITAL

M
e -1 T | T
HMI WG
Reghetered, boued and fully paid
6T 054958321 ﬂdinﬁ':r domestse sleres of KMEBL 00 cach 67055 57,055
L3BT T A 100 overseas listed H shares of REMB1, 00 each 13,877 13877
BT B0.G32
Al ordmary domestic shares and H shanes rand pord pero inall material respects.
. RESERVES
Cgital n..l. Sarpha D her Esrbmgs  Retainel s
ek rminm [ hiad A e feumwe v
B Shee Be we he Cme we
(et (1) (b (=1} e (w1}
Balamce as of Jarmiary 1, 2005, a8 prevdously reported 17 54 10,748 0072 k] (.l 110526 M8 251
Adjusted for the Eighth Acquisition (Mode 1) 10 - - -— - 2 15
Esalmnce a8 of Rewamry 1, 200 5, 48 restabed 17074 10.Ms  Ghg72 3 1y TILEN S
Total comprehensive moome for the year, as restated - - — 2 129 TS 20,679
Acquisition of non-controlling inboress [41] - - - i1
Contribution From non-controlling interests BT - — o= i T &7
Dividends (Mote 2T) Y E — = — (6160 06160
Appropristions (Mote (i — — 1,501 — — 1,5%01) —
Balmce 25 of December 31, 2005, s restuled 17160 10,746 AT 56 812y 1XRug a8
Tetal comprehensive meome for the year, as restated - - - (165 19 12018 B4
Dhvidends (Poate 2T} — - - — - {64805 (L]
Appropristions (Nobe Giiky — — 1648 — — i1, 638 —
Eislance 23 of Degember 31, 2016, &8 restated 17160 10,746 2611 T 622 133839 M HS
Total comprehensive moome for the vear _ — — [k} {259 18617 18,065
Acquisition of the Eiglth Acquired Group (Mot 1) (50 - - - — ) 87
Acquisition of non-controlling interests A6 - — - - - i
Dividends (Note 27 - - - — -- (7.5 (7.530)
Appropristions (Mobe (i1 - - 1.686 - — {1.684) -
Cithers - - (4 - - 4
Balance 25 of Decermber 31, 2017 17126 lgi'.‘-lﬁ 4,297 414 J881F 143333 T4 915
Mobes:

(i Capital reserve of the Group maindy represents the swmn of (a) the difference betwoen U camying amount of the Company s net sssets md the par valse
of the Company s shares izsued upon its formation; ib) the difference betwem the consideration paid by the Group for the entilics acquined, other than
bz Fidth Acqaired Giroug, from Ching Telecomaumication Corporation, which were accounted Tor a8 equity transactions s dischosed i MNote 1, and
the historical camying smount of the net assets af these acquired entities; and (¢) the difference betwen the consalidation paid by the Group Tor the
wrquisition of non-controlling interests and the historical carrying amount of the non-controlling mterests soguired.

The difference betwoen Une consideratzon paid by the Group and the historical canying ansount of the net assets of the Filth Acquasition was recorded as
o deduction of retained camings.
Capital reserve af the Company represents the dalference between the camying amournil of the Company'e netl asscts and the par value of the Compamy®s
shares isawed upon its formation.

(i) Onber reserves ol e Group represent prirnarily the change in the Fair value of avaikable-lor-sile equity securities and the defomed ta [sabilities

recognized due 1o the change in fair value of available-For-sale equity sequrities,
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2, RESERVES {contimped)

(il The surphes reserves comdis of satutory surplus reserve mnd discrationary sanplss resave
According to the Compary 's Arlicles of Association, the Company is required to transfer 1% of its net profil, as determined in sccordmce with the
lewwoer ol thoe aimound. determined under the PRC Accourting Standards for Business Enlerprases and e amsount delermined under IFRS, to the staiulory
surplus reserve wnlil mach reserve halance reaches 3026 of the registered capital. The transfer Lo this reserve must be made betore dstnbatson of any
dividend 1o sharcholders, For the year ended Decemlbeer 31, 2007, the net profit of the Compamy determined in accondance with the PRC Accounting
Stndards for Business Enterprises and IFRS are the same. For the year mded December 31, 2007, the Comparsy inmaferred BMBL G856, being 10%6 of
fhee wear's met profit, Lo this rescrve, For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company transfiermed RME1 638, being 109 of the yvear's et profit
determined i acoordmee with the IFRS. As of Decemnber 31, 2006 and 2017, the amoust of staiilory surplus reserve was EMEB26.532 and RMEB2S 218
respectively,

The Comparmy did niot transfer mny discretionary amp hes reserve for the years ended December 31, 3016 asd 2007, As of Decomber 31, 2006 and 3017,
e amoien of discretionary sanphas reserve was BB, (74,

The datitory mnd discretiomary surplus reserves are non-distribagalde other than in hquidation and can be used 1o make good of previcus years” losses, i
wy, and mury be utilized for business expansion or converted o shiee capital by issuing new shares te existing sharcholders in proportzon b their
sharcholdings or by increasing the par value of the shares arrently beld by them, provided that the ramainng stasitory seplis reserve bulance afler
wuch issue is nol less than 25% of the registered capital,

(ivh According Lo the Comparry s Articles of Association, the amount of netamed camings avalable for distribution o shandwdders of the Company i the
lowwer ol the amount. of the Company s retained eamings detenmined in accordance with the PRC Accoumtimg Standerds for Basi Enterprises and the
amont determined i accordmnee with IFRS, As of Devembser 31, 2016 and 2007, the sl of retained carmings available for distribation was
RMB112 631 and RMBEEX0 2T respectively, being the amount determmed in accordance with IFRS. Final dividend of approcamatety RAET 518 in
respect of the finas isl year 200 7 proposed afler the end of the reporting period has net been recognized ae a lisbility in the consolidated financial
staternenis al the end of the reporting period (Mote 2T

21, DPERATING REVENUES
Opersing revenses represent revenes from the proviston of lelecommumications services, The components of the Group's operating revomics are &
Follows:
X Eies s hr 3

— THME HNH NE
frematell]  ireeated

Voice i TResl  TOIRS  AL6TH
Inteme (d) 126665 150440 172554
Information and application services (i) G6377 66281 TEdMe
Telecommirambcations nebworl resosnee services s lease of network equipinem (v 17835 17,781 19,125
Cithers v _dxl79 AT 23R 10828

331,517 35153 366.2X0
— — S—

Motes:
(ip Rmm the azgregme mnount of voics usags fees, metallation fees and intercomections fees charged te customens for the proviesn of telephomy

[ Rmmm amints charged to customners for the provision of Intemiet acces services

(i) Represert pramarily the aggregate amound of Toes charged (o austomers for the provision of nlemet daia center service, systam bogralion services,
e=-Sirfing HID service, caller ID service md sholl messaging service and efc.

(ivh  Represend pransrily the sgeregate amomt of Fees charged 1o austoimers for the provision of teles ommunécations netwiork rescarde services mnd eass
imcome from othor domestic telecommimicalions operors and onlerprise customers for the isage of the Grmip*s telecommumic ations networks and
equipEent,

ivi Rep pramrily from sale, and repair and mamtenance of cquapment a8 well as the pesale of mobile services IMVND)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AN Benminb] smounts in millions, exoept per share dala and evoepd otherwise stated)
1.  NETWORK OPERATIONS AND SUPPORT EXPENSES

Vo ol Tovember 1
D PR BN _EI_

EAIE HASI ]
(resabeld]  drestasnd)
Operatzg and masnd sasice 6193 4RID0 55360
Ultikity e | B3 148 1252
FProperty rental and management fee 11} 4,115 22320 606
Cthers B 129 161
BlA3E  @41% 1030460
i v —

obe:
iy Property rental snd management fee inchades the fee in relation te the bease of tel econmmumnications tewers aed related assets ("Tower Assets}
iheremnaller fefiermed 1o s the “Tower Assets |oase o™

23 PERSONNEL EXPENSES
Personine] expenses wre attributshle b the folbowing Functions:

' par ewiided Dierrmbm 15
Yrostuied}  [resisied)
Wetwaork oporations and mpport A2 GBS |54
Selling, general and administrative 1574 18218 17440

553&5 %504 S8
24, OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
N or el ooll Divwrwnmhor 31
Panes T Fi 1
HATH HME HAH
) ) irmintedl  dreatnd)
Intere omnection charges i1 12363 11,812 12,213
Cost of goods sold i) 34,990 W.T08 inz
Dronstions 1= 19 3
CHhers (i} 1,534 1,76 1,658
ABLMIE 52, #5612
——— ——— -—
Mokbes:

iy Inlerconnection changes represent amounts mourmed For the use of other domeestic and foreipn telecommimications operstors” petworks for delivery of
voice and data traflic that origmate from the Group®s telecommumications networks.

(iy  Cost of goods sobd primarily represents cost of lelecomumunications equipment sold

(ial)  Oobers mainly incbade tax and srcharpes other than value-sdded tax i meome tax
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15 NET FINAMNCE COSTS
¥ o o ell Diprohow 30

—_— =T
i 1
Creatarsd | e ar ey

Interest exqpense incigred 4,501 4,20 LR B

Less! Inberest expense capilalized® {127 ] (12T)

Ml mbefest expetise 4574 3,702 31586

Inberest roame (376 (350 (25

Foreign exchange hases 134 . L

Foreign exchange gains i79) {322) (530

AT 355 31

* Imerest expense was capitalized in constraction in progress ol the following mtes per ammum LR I W T - T
26, INCOME TAX

Income tax in the profil or less comprises:
Yosr mmaleed Dewommbor 81
- LI RN - |
HATH BME HMVEH
{resasmll Drestaned|

Provisicn for PRC mcome tie T8 54TR 3,147

Priwision for income b of other lax jurisdictions k] 155 123

Deferred tmoation 1680y 3350 2002

A reconcilintion of the: expected tax expense with the achual tax expense is 3= follows:

Nem TR S W
T T .
renmied ]
Earmings before income fioc g&m !ﬁl 13 2,053
Expected income tax expense af siabubony i mbe of’ 23% (0] et 6009 [ it
DilTerenisal tax rabe on PRC subsidsaries” and bramches’ income (n (400 (2750 (108
DrifYereniial txc rabe on cther subsidiaries’ meome {in n (53p 82
Mon-deductible expenscs i 431 ABS 80
Mon-tmeabibe moome (1] {7H {105n {1y
Oithers [\ 153) (BEh 24
Actunl income tax expense 6,552 5,048 [T
Mobes:

{ip  Except for certamn subsidiaries and branches which are maindy toved & o preferoatial rabe of 15%4, e provision for mamland China income tax is based
on u statutony pabe of 25% of the assessble income of the Company, its mainlmnd China subsidinrics snd branches as determimed in accordance with the
relevaml meome Lax rules and regulations of the PRC.

(i1} Income tox provisions of the Company *s aubsidiaries in Hong Kong and Macu Special Admmistrative Hegions of the FRC, and i other countries are
based on the subaidiaries” assessable income mnd mconae tax rales applicable in the respective tax jurisdictions which rege from 12% o 399

(i) Amoumnts represent miscellineoan expenses in excess of statulory dedictible lmmits for b purp-oses.

(i) Admmsimts represeant miscellaneous meoame which are ol subject to ncome i

(¥)  Ammis prirarity represent i deduction on prior vear research and development expenses spproved by B mithorities and other ta benefits,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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27, DIVIDENDS

Parsmnt to 2 resoluion passed at the Bosrd of Directors” ineeting on Manch 28, 2018, a final dividend of equrvalent to HESG 11 per shre totaling
approximately RME?, 218 for the year ended December 31, 301 T was proposed for shareholders approval sl the Armml General Mesting. The dividend has
et been provided For in the corsolidabed finmcial stabements for the year ended December 31, 2017

Famamnt 1o the shweholders' approval at the Anmm)] Genem] Mecting hield on May 23, 2007, o final dividend of RMBO 095043 (equivalent to
HES0.10%) per share totaling RABT.530 in respect of the year ended 3 December 200 6 wis dechwed and paid on July 21, 2007,

Pursuant 1o the shareholders' approval at the Anma] General Meeting held on May 23, 2016, o final dividend of RMBO 82 (equavalent 1o
HES0.095) per share totaling RMBSAE in respect ol the year ended Decemnber 31, 3015 was declared and paad by July 15, 2016
24, BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic camings per shase for the years endied Decemmber 31 2005, 2006 and 2017 is based on the profil sirtatsble 1o equity holders of
the Comgparry of KMB20,058, BMBLS,008 and RAMBIE, 617, regpecively, divided by 80,932 568 521 ghares.

The arount of diluted emmings per share is nol presented as there were no polential ordinary shares in existence for the periods presented.

20, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Chparrating lease commiimamniys

The Group beases hixiness premises and equipmsend through non-cancellable operaling lesses and these opeoraling |esses do net contain provisions For
contingent lease rentala. Mo of the rental sgrecments conlain escalution provisions ihat may require higher fabure rental payments nor imgese restriclions on
drvidends, additional debt and'or Turther leasing,

As of December 31, 2007, the Group's futume minimmm lease payments under non-cancedlnble op erating lenses are as follows:

RADR
i b 10,680
009 19,563
b L] 186,730
21 6,051
022 3576
Thereafier a7
Total mmimam lease pmyments 55, Tt
Total rental expese in respect of operating leases charged to profil or loss for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 were
EMBI0S RMBZ1240 and RMBIS 495, respetively,
Cigitial ¢ ommito aty
As of December 31, 2007, the Group had capital commatments & Sollows:
AR
Contracted For bud not provided
- property M5
= elecommunications network plant and equipment 10,0
10245
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29, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Coretigg eind Fabilitfes

() The Groap was advised by their PRC lawyers that no material contingent linbilities were pasmumed by the Group.

by Asof December 31, 20086 and 2017, the Group did notl hove contingent Fishillitses in respect of gusrmantees given o banks in resp ect of barking facilitics
raiibed to other parties, of other forms of contimgent liabilities.

Ll o oviting encies

The (roup i a defendamt in certam laweuits as well 2= the named party in other procesdmgs arising in the ardirmry course of bissmiess. Management has
wseeszed the likelihood of @ unfivorsble outcome of such contmgences, lnwsuils or other proceedines and based on such assessment, believes thatl amy
reaulting Habilities will mot have n materisl adverse effect on the financisl position. opersting results o cash flows of the Group,

ML, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Firengial assets of e Group inchude cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, investments, accoounts receivable, propayments and other receivables,
Fmarscial lisbilitbes of the Group inchide shiort-term e Bong-term debt and payable, soommts payable, sconsed expenses mnd other payables. The Group docs
et hald mor issue financinl metnaments for trading purposes,

(&) Fair Vil Mecrunments

Beamed on IFRS 13, “Fair Falue Meanoement”, the fair valiee of cach fimmcial instrnment is categorized i ils entirety based on the lowest kevel of imput
that & umufm Lo that Fair valise measrament. The levels ane defined as Tollows:
Level §; Fair values rrﬂnnd1n13q1.ﬂ.¢d|:ncu {umadjusted) in active markels for identical fimancinl mstnoments

Level 2 Fur valoes messured usmng quoled prices m adnve markels for ssmalar finsmcrsd instr or wsing vabustion techmques imnowhich all
signifbcant inpats wre directly or indiroﬂh' based on ebaervable murket data

¢ Level 3: fuir vahies menszred usang valoation techniques in which ey significant input is mot based on obeervable market dats

Thee fiair vabues of the Groigps financial memaments (other than long-temm debt and payvable snd avatlsble-for-sale equity nvestment securitics)
approximate teeir carmy mg amourds dae to te slon-term maturity of these instnaments.

The Growp s avallable-for-sale Histed equity securilies are cabegorized as bevel | fnmcial instnoments. The Fair value of the Group's available-for-sale
listed equity securitics. which mmoambed (o RMBIL 569 and RMBSa% as of Decenber 51, 2006 mnd 20 T respectively was based on quated market price on
PRC stock exochanges. The Group's long-lerm vetments, other than the available-for-sale listed equity securitics, are mlisted equity inforests for which ne
queoted murk et prices exist in the PRC and because their fair vahies comnot be messured reliably, so their fair values wene not disclosed

The fair vadues of long-tenm debd and payshle is estimated by discounting fiohe cash flows using cument market interest rates offered to e Group for
diebst wath substantaally the same charschorestics mnd mahartees. The fiar vatue mesunerment of long-term ddbt and payable is calegorized as bevel 2. The
imerest rabes used by the Group in estimating the fair vahees of long-tenn debt and payable, havimg considered the foreign cumency dencenination of the debe,
rangped from 1.0%6 o 4.5 (2006 1.0% b0 4. 960 As of Decemnber 31, 2016 and 2017, the carmying amounts and G vahse of the Group®s bomg-term debt and
payable were = follows:

_Dermmbe L3006 _Deobe 10,3017
[ Wl Ty,
i - Wl l-.-.-' -’1’;
HME HME HME HME
Lewig-term debit and payable TLEM 71741 49741 48255

During the vear, there were no ransfers mmong imstromsents i level 1, level 2or level 3.
Fa3éi
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ML FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contimmed)
() Rigks

The Ciroap s financial mstrumenits are exposed bo thnee main types of risks, namely, credst risk, liquidsty risk and market nsk (which mainly comprases
of inberest rate risk and foreign curmency exchange rate risk). The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of firancial
markets and socks Lo mimdmize potential sdverse ellects on the Groip's Ginanal performance, Risk management i camied ol under policies approved by the
Board of Directors. The Board prossdes principles for overall sk menagement, as well as policies covering specific areas, such s liquidity risk, oredit risk,
mnd marke risk. The Bosrd regularky reviews these policies and suthonizes changes ifnecessary based on eperating and market conditions and other relevant
risks. The following smmmarizes the qualitative md quantitative disclosaires for each of the three mam types of risks:

11 Credit rigk

Credit risk refers 1o the risk that a courderpamy wall be unabe 1o pay amonts i fll when due. For the Group, this sises mainky from depesils it
mamtaing at financ] msdfutions and <reda @ provides 1o cislomers foc the provisson of telecomrminications services. To lmit exposure to credit sk relaling
to deposits, the Group pnmlnh' places cash deposits only with lege sate-owned financial institutions in the PRC with scceptable credit mtings. For accounts
receivable, management perfonms ongoing crodit evalistions of its cueniens” lnandal condition ad penerally does not requise collateral on sccoumis

receivable. Fisthermore, the Groop has a diversified base of customens with no single customer contrituting more than 1% e of revemues for the periods
presented. Funiber details of the quantitative disclosmires mn respect of the Group®s exposare on credit risk for sccoumis receivable are set oufl in Note 5,

i) Linuidiey risk

Luadiity risk: refers b the mak that fimds will nod be avaslable to meet Irabililies as they fall due, and results from temang and smoonl mematches of
cash inflow md cutflow. The Group manages liquidity sk by maintsining sufficient cash balances and adequate amont of commitied banking facilitics 1o
met its fimsding needs, moluding working capatal, principal and mberest paymonls on debs, dividend paymimits, capital expond and new 5 for
a et ménimmim period of between 3 to & months

The fillewvinige table scts onnl the remainig coniraches] msturitics at the end of the reporting period of the Group's Ninancisl [akdlities, which e based
o comniractus] imdiscoamted cash flows (including interest pavments computed sing contraciual rtes or, iF Doating, based an prevailing mtes al the end of the
reperting period ) and the earliest date the Group would be required torepay:

L
Toamal

f-m-nu.i Withis 1 Pl thm 1 Blor v ikan 3 Sisre

Cariying il sianr el Fear ar a8 gear Bt e yorirn Bt b tham

i i Ml | o I e s B yeais Foai i

RMH EME HAME HAE HME HME

Short-term debdl 0, TR 41,425 41425 —_ — —_
Long-term debt mnd payable 636 5126 62,307 Ligr daol 8031

Accouns pavable, as estated 122493 122493 122493 - — —

Accrued expenses and other payables, 2= restated a1,17% MATE LU e — — —
Fimang ¢ bease obligations 1112 112 P} 0 il 3

326104 AM3Ie 37456 1207 34631 B
T
Twtal i

cawin prtnal Within I Boloww tham § Mor o ihin ¥ Mare

Carrying w i pamd ol Fowir @ o0 grear Bt s i bl ben thin 5§

- wanh flor Adwvm and o  ywar thiam & waern U

HAMH FAE RAE HAH HAE ﬁ

Shor-term diebt 5558 55882 55,602 —_ — —
Lemg-term debt 742 58445 2,723 1716 46612 SAN

Accouns pavable 118321 119,321 119,321 — — —

Accried expemses nned other payables a0 b A O, 505 - = =
Futit e bease chligations T &3 S 14 13 1
5‘253-’9‘! 33234 3 E-I-?D T30 A5462% 5402
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ML FINANCLIAL INSTRUNMENTS (contined)
(b Risky foormimedt
il belbeves ihat the Group's cument cash on hand, expectied cach lows from operstions and svailable credit Tacilitees froan banks (Note 15}
will be mufficient Lo meet the Group's working capital requirements and repay its borrowimngs and obligations when they becoame due.
i) Interest rale sk

The: {iroup s aterest rate risk exqposare arses primarily from its shont-term debt and long-term debt mnd payable. Debis camying intercet at varable rtes
mnd an fixed mbes expose the Groap to cash flow imterest rate risk and Bair valae inberest rate risk respectively, The Growp manages ils exposure 1o inbereat rae
risk by closely monslormg the change m the markel inberest rate.

The fillowing table sets oail the ilorest rate profile of the Group's debt o the ond of te repontng period:

b LT

T r——
LR T [y
= EAE HME
Flxed rate debi:
Short-temm diebd i3 3o s a0 042
Limg-term deht 12 0.0L5 a3 49742
49, T 103,784
Varialile rute debt:
Short-term deba 42 e 41 LT
Defermed consideration due to China Teleconmumications Corparation (3 defined in Nole
15 4l 61,710 -
62,634 516
Tolal debt 112 426 L0, ik}
Piced mie debt as » percentage of total debt A48 —3

As of December 31, 2006 and 2017, it i& cstimated that an increase of 100 bass potnts m imerest rate, with all other variables bebd constani. would
decrease the Group®s net profit for the yewr and retained eamings by approximately BEMEB4TO and RMB- respectively.

The above sensstivity analysis has been prepared on the sssumptions thet the change of interest mbe wns applied to the Group®s debt in existence al the
end of the repoating period with exposure 1o cash flow interest rle risk. The malysis is prepared on the smne basis for 2014

1iv) Foreggn curmency exchange mle risk
Foreign arency exchmnge rte risk mises on finencial msinenents that are denomimated in a cumency other than the fumclional aerency in which they

afe mecasred. The Giroup's fonen aurency mk exposure relates o bank deposits and borrowmngs denominated pamarly in US dollars, Exros aivd Homg
Kong dollars.

Mamgement does nol expect the sppreciation or depreciation of the Renminbi agamst foreign cusrenc s will matenially affect the Group's firancial
position and resull of operations becaese §1,6% (2006: 81.58%6) of the Group®s cash and cash equivalonts and 99.4%0 (30060 949,490 of the Group’s shost-tem
imd lomg-term debt and payable as of Decomber 31, 2007 are denominated m Remminbic Dietails of bank bosns denominated in other currencies are sel ol in
Mote 13,

3. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The: Group®s prmary obpectives when mnaging capital are to safeguard the Group®s abiality to contimae & o gong comcen, so thal 1 can contimue 1o
provide amvestimend reurms for shardiolders and benefits for other siskelvolders, by pricing products md services commensurately witly the level of risk and by
sCCIrng acoess bo fnance al a reasonable cost.

F-38

182/213



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO000OO00D0DO000DO000nDOodnoE.s27)

Table of Contents

CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITED AND SUBSIDLARTES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AN Benminb] smounts in millions, exoept per share dala and evoepd otherwise stated)

3. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT {continued)

Marsgernent regularty reviews and imanages ds capital structiere 1o maininin a balance between the lagher shareholder rohurs that naight be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the sdvantages and senmity aflorded by a sound capital position, and nakes adjustments 1o the capital stuchure in Fght

of changes in economic eonditionm

Marmgement menibors its ¢ apital struchire cn ihe basi of total debido-olsl nesets ratio. For tiis purpese the Group definmes 1ol eb as the sum of
shari=term debt and longderm debt @nd payable, and fimance lease chlieations. As of Decamber 31, 306 & and 2017, the Group's 1otal debsl-lo-tolal mssets ratio
wae | 7. 2% and 15.8% respectively, which is within the range of management s expectation.

either the Compargy mor amy of its subsidizries ase subject to edemally imposed capitsd reqiramneants.

3L RECONCILIATION OF LIAR LITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table bebow details changes in the Group's liabilitics arising from fmancing advitics, mchding both cash and non«ash chnges. Linbilities ansing
From firancing activities are those for which eash Mlows were, ar lutire cash Mows will be, ¢lssified in the Groap's consolidated stalemenis of cash lows &

cash flows from finmncing activilies.

Coomnd o atinm
Conuidr st P P —
T - e =
Beart-term l-;'rni Fimmrs lva i .“ﬂl: e j......:.‘rﬁg.‘ Dvidond
[ payshle whligntim Arguisition ete]7) it (Tite 171 payahle Toual
HAME HMH HAH HME HAE HAE

Balmoe as of lamary 1, 2007 A0, TED 71,646  Jind — — -_— 112,528
Fmancing cash flows 13778 2219) 21 - (31 7619 {16.847)
Mew fmmoe lexes — — 35 — — 5
Interest openses -— st ] F — P kit
Forelgn exchange gain — & — — - - ()
Acquisftion of the Eighth Acquired

i = = = &7 - = #7
Acquisstion of non=controlling inberesis - - - - 154 —_ 150
Distribaion to non-controlling intesests - - - - - 5 &
Dividends declared —_ - — — —_ T.530 7530
Cihers = =y %) = = = 15
Bialmce 33 of Degember 31, 2017 54148 45,742 kel L 119 — 104,

TPEE———
F-3%
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1% RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a)  Transaniions with China Telecom Gromp

The Circap &5 4 pant of companics wider China Teleconmmanic sions Corporation. s company owned by e PRC government, and hiis significant
transactions mad business relation chips with mambers of China Telecom Grooap.

The: principal transactions with China Telecom JGroup which were camied cat in the ordinary course of businees are #s follows,
¢ ar ow e Dol &

Haten v
N T T T T
dressted ) (rescwied)

Purchases of telec omrmmications equipment amd mstenals iy 5285 L1545 4,348
Sales of telecomemmications oguipment and insterials lip 2836 rLms 3
Constructson and enginmeering sevices qiip 19885 18936 18,672
Prowisicn of IT services (i} 141 an: 42
Reeeaving [T wervites (hip 1362 1597 1Bl2
Receiving comamumity services (v} 2860 2871 Lodd
R.d:til.-il* “uli‘lf sETVREs vy IXTIS 13938 15072
Froperty lease income {vip 47 34 33
Propemy lease expenses (i} 678 559 o |
Mel transaction mmomnt of centrlized services (i} £ 523 i
Inbere onmection revamies v} 50 60 1%
Interconnection chieges (viii} i 22 193
Intervet spplications chanmd services (] L 33T 3
Interest on amoumts due toand loans from China Telecom Gromp xp A8 2008 il
Lease of COMA network Tacilithes (i 226 154 174
Lense of imter-provincial irmsmizsion opic fitres (i} 2 16 13
Lense of land use rights (i} 13 f 3
Mokes:

iy Foepresert the smmoun of tebecommmumications oquipnsent and materials purchased frea'sold to Chins Telocom Group and commassson pasd and goayabile
for procuremendt services provided by China Telecom Group.

(i) Represent constnsction and engencering #s well as design and supervisery services provided by China Telecoan Group,

(1] Represemil IT senvices provided to and recerved From China Tebecom Groog.

(Wl Represent nmounts pasd and peyable to Chira Teleoom Group i respect of culburs], ediscational, health care and olber commmmity servioes,

(%) Represent amounts pasd and pay able to China Telecom Group in respect of ancillary services such 2 repairs and mairmnanee of telecommmscations
equiprent and Tacilitics and cenain oustomer services,

ivil Represent amounts of property lease Uee received and receivable frompaid and payable to China Toleoom dGroup for mutual leasing of propertics.

(vid) Represent net smounl shared beiween the Compary and China Telooom Group for costs sssociated with centralized services. The amwound regresants
ancamts received or receivable for the net amoont of centralred services.

(i} Represend amounts received and receivable from/paid mod payable to China Telecom Group for mterconnestion of bocal and domestic ong distance
calle

(ixp  Represent amounts received md receivable from Chine Telecoan Group in respect of Intemel 2pp I ations channel services, inclading the provision of
telecommmunications chamel and applications: suppon platfomn and billing and deduction services, de.

(x)  Represenl mierest paid and piyable to China Telecom Group with respect o the amounts due to China Telecom Groop and lomns from China Telecom
o (Nobe 151

{xif  Represent amounts pasd and payable to Ching Telecom Group primanily for lesse of cotam COMA mobale tedecommumcations network (*CTMA
network”) facilities bocabed in Xizang Autenomous Fegion

(xil)  Fopresent amounts pasd and payable to Chin Telecom Group for lease of cartain mber-provine il trmsmission oplic fibres within its service regions.

(xiii} Represent amounts pasd and payable to China Telecom Group for |eases of b wse nights.

Fefip
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3% RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (contimed)

{a)  Transactlons with China Telecom Group (contimeed)
Amounts due fromdo China Telbecom Group are summanzed & Tollows:

Do von bare 81
RMH HAR
(remaed )
Accounds receivable Ma 1502
Prepayments ind other cumont assels ThE TT4
Total amimis doe from China Tebecom Group Ligd  E2T6
Accomis pavable D331 262
Accrued expemses and other payables EIERE
Bhort-term debt 5271 19.098
Lomgstenn debt mnd payable 61,700 40,00

Total amounts dae to China Telecom Group

Aunoumnts due fromto Cleina Telecom Group, other than short o debil and longstenm debl and pay able, bear no mberest, e imseared and ane
repavab e in nccordmce with contrachual terms which are simalar to those temes offered by third partics. The terms and conditions associated with short-lerm
diebt md borgz-term debt and pavabile duie lo China Telecom Group are sel oul m MNole 15

As of December 31, 2006 md 201 7, no matenal allowance for deobtfil debts was recognized morespect of amounts due from China Telecom Groap,

by Transactions with Cleima Tower
Thee prinecipad transac thons with China Tower ane a3 Follows!

W rai ovdd Divwsmrbre 11
Towver Assets Disposal - h003l - -
Tenver Asuets least foe U LI 11457 15380

Provision of IT sevices [ - 12 49
Mobes:
iy Represent amounts pasd and payable to China Tower for the lease of the Tower Assete

The Compamy snd Chinn Tower entered into agreement on July £ 2016 and » applemenial sgreement on February 1.2018 to conlinm the pricng and
related amangoments m relalion to lhe beases of the Tower Assels.

i} Represeil IT sorvices prm'irlhi Bo Chimna Tosver,
Amourts due From o China Tower e smmmanzed as follows:

I ma?
HME ~HAE

Accouns receivable (1] 5
Prepayments and other cumrent assets 1218 2133
Total amounts dae from China Tower 2288 2137
Accomds payable LoaT 26l
Acerued expcses and olber payables BT 1374
Tokal nmimmis dae fo China Terwer 4804 1088

T ———

F-al
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CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LINMITFD AND SUBSIDIARTES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AN Benminb] smounts in millions, exoept per share dala and evoepd otherwise stated)
3% RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (contimed)

(b} Transactlons with Chima Tower (continued)

Amotnts due fromdo China Tower bear no interest. are unsecured and are repavable i accordance with contractual terms which are similer to those
termms offered by third partics.

A of December 51, 2006 md 201 7, no material sllowsnce for dewbtfil debls was recogized i respedt of amounts due From China Tower,
(ch Key mamngement personne compensation

Koy managemend persormel are thise persons heving mithority and responsahility For planning, directing and controlling the sciavities of the Group,
digectly or indirectly, inchading dSrectors and supervisors of the Group.

Key managamed persormel compensation of the Group @ summareed @ Tollows:

e e

Short-term cmploves benefits QES k= 7804
Post-cnplovment benefits 916 ) 8lé
Ii}l'-".‘i 1,687 8 &0

The abeve rermmeration {s mclided tn posonnd expenses.
{dy  Comtributions to post-amployment benefll plans

The Groap participates in variows defined contritution post-eonployment benefit plans crganized by mandcipal, matonomous regional and provingial
povermmnds for fe conploy ees. Fusther details af the Group's post-employment benefin plins are disclosed n MNote 34,

(e} Transactions with other government-related entities in the FRC

The: Girou is 4 goverrment relsied enterprice and operates in m economic regime currently doménated by entities directly or mdirectly controlled Ty
the People’s Repiblic of China through governamenl authoriiies, agencees, alfilistions nd aller orgamsations (collectively reforred to i “govemimont-related
entities™ )L

Apart from tranasctions with perent company and ils fellow asheidiarics™ote 334a)), the Group has iransactions that are collectively bt not
individually significant with ather government-related ertities, which inchide but not limited to ghe followng:
¥ rendermg and receiving services, mcluding bt not broibed to tel ecommmm calions servioes
sales and purchases af goeod s, propertves and cther assels
d lemse of mssets
. depesiting and borrewing
uxe of public wilities
These transctions are conducted in the ondicary course of the Group's busi on LETs Comy le 1o the termis of transactions with other emtities that
e ol govermment-relabed. The Groap prces its teleconumm kcations services and products based on govemament-regulated tanl rates, where applicable. or

based n commercial negodintions. The Group has also established procurement palicies and approval processes for punchmses of products and services, which
domnet depend an whether the comberparties are government-related enfities or ned

The directors of e Company belbve the sbove mlormstion provides spproprate disclonse of related party transactions.
F-£2
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M. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFTTS PLANS

As stipulabed by the regulations of the PRC, the Group parixipales m varous delined contribulion retmemant plans organioed by rmmnicipal,
muboeimons regional and grovine ial govermments for its anplayecs. The Group is requinal o make contributions toibe retirement plass st rabes rangirg from
135 1o 20%6 al the saliries, bonises mnd cerlain allowances of the employees. A member of the plan is enliled toa pension equal to a fooed proportion of the
ralary grevailing at the member's retirement date. Other than ihe nbove, the Group also participabes in supplementary defined contribution refirement plms
mamaged by ndepondent extemal parties whereby e Group i requaned (o make contributions to the retirament plans o fxed rates af the employees’ salarics.
bu'mqtt'lﬂmqid :u'lai:ul]wh'::m The Gircaup bas no ollver nstenial obligation for the payment of pension benefits associabed with these plans beyond the sumal
contribistions descrsbed above

The Group”s contribulbons Tor the above plans for the veas eded Decanber 31, 2005, 2006 and 201 7 were RMBS, 590 and EMBG,656 and RMBA 884
respectively

The amount payable for contrituti ons to the above defined contribution retiremsent plans as of Decomber 31, 2006 md 200 7 was RMB397 and RAMBS68
Tospeciively.

15 STOUK APFRECIATION RIGHTS

The Groop mnplemented a stock: appreciation rights plan for members of ils management 1o provide incentives to these eroployees. Under this plan,
stock appreciation rights are granted in units with each umit representing one H share, Mo shares will be issued inder the stock appreciatemn rights plan. Upon
exercise of the steck appreciation rights, a recipient will receive, subject Lo sy applicable withholding txec a cash payment in RMB, traslated firom te Hong
Kong dollar amourt equal to the product of the member of slock, sppreciation rights exorcused and the difference between the ecercise price and mvacket price
of the Comgearry s H sleres ol the date of exercise based on the applicable exchange rate between EME and Hong Koz dollar # the date of the exercise. The
Compmny recognizes compensation expense of the stock apprecistion nghts over the applicable vesting period.

In 2002, the Compeery approved the granting of %167 million stock apprecition right wnits Lo eligible emplovees, Under the terms of this grant, all
etock appreciation rights had s exencise proce of HEKS4, 76 perunit. A recipient of dock sppreciation rights mey exercise the rights in stges commenc ing
Movember 200 5 As of Movember 2004, 2005 and 2004, the totad number of stock apprecintion rights exercisable may not in aggregate exceed 35 3%, 66, ™
wnd [000RS respectively, of e tofal stack apprecibon rghts granbed to aich person.

Al stock appreciation rights granted by the Company in 2012 expired in 2016, During the years ended Decamber 31, 2005 and 2006, no stock.
apprecialion right units were exercised. For the year ended December 31, 2006, compensation expense of RME 32 was reversed by the Group m respect af
stock apprecration rights as a resll of the expiration of the stock appreciation mght units granted by the Compary in 2002 For the year ended Decembser 31,
2015, compensation expense of RME 102 was reversed by the Group in respect of stock appreciation rights ne a renall of decline in shore price of the
Conpismy.

As of Docomber 31, 2006 and 2017, no liability arising from sock appreciation rights was assumed by the Comp sy

3. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDLARIES
Dietails of the Comg ary 's subsidisries shich principally affected tse resulla, assets and lhabalitbes of e Group a8 of December 31, 200 7 are 8 follows:

Frpneied faietd cagwiad

Trpe ol B EEE PR T ik FOMEE el iokd T PRargs
Mawr of cofspeas legal erin by Dot of metorporat on Py eal -] sdirrensr e srbrrien
Chins Telecom Sysem Provision of eyeem
Inlegration Co., Liméted Limiied i egraticon and
Company Septemnber 13, 2041 PR 42 consulting services
F-3
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M. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDLARIES {continued)

Lt of somjony,
Chirs Telecom Globsl Limted

China Telecom { Americas)
Corporalion

China Telecom Best Tone
Information Service Co., Lamled

China Telecom {(Macms) Compamy
Lanited

Tmni Telecomn Terminals
Compiery Limited

China Telecom {Singapore t Ple.
Lynited

E-arfing Pay Co, Litd

Shenzhen Sheko
Telbecormmraistalions Compamy
Limiled

China Telecom i Australiah Py Lid

China Teleoom Korea Ca. Ltd

China Teleoom (Malaysah SDN
BHD

China Telecom Infomzition
Techralogy (Vietnam) Co., [1d

Trge
tngul nisty

Limited
Compamy
Lmated

Compary

Limsted
Copiairy

Limsted
Comgany

Linated

Limsted
Conmmamy
Leméted
Comgairy

Liriated
Company

Lumsted
Comparny

Limated
Company

Lemsted
Cormguany

Limated

Eride of s orpormios.

Febsnpary 25, 2000

MNoveenber 22 2041

gt 15, 2007

Dctober 15, 24

July 1, 2008

O loder 5, DG

March 3, 2011

Mary 5, 1984

Junwzary 10, 3011

May 16, 212

Jume 26, 2012

July &, 2002

Mace of iwcorporst on mnd
opeTEion

Heng Kong Specusl

Admingsiralive Region of the

FRC

The United Smes of Americs

PRC

Miaaia Special Administrative

Region ol the PRC

FRC

Singapore

FRC

FRC

Australis

South Korea

Maluysia

Vietnam
F=#
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HRS 168 nmlkion

L5543 malkion

as0

MOP&D mallion

S5, 000,001

oy

ALTDH mllion

ERW 500 million

MYR3, 723 500

WD L, 300 malbion

e
el ke
Provigon of
inlernational
vahcadded mefwork
STV e
Provision of
telecorrmmunications
SETVICES
Proviston of Best
Tone mfiormation
services
Provisson of
telecomemimnicalns
SETViCEs
Bales of
telecomemumicalions
terrnirls
Provieeon of
anderTration]
vahie-gdded network
sy iees
Provisson of
C-COITMINETE € SETVide
Proviston of
telecorrmmmicalions
BTV iCes
Prosviseon of
international valise-
added nctwark
sETViCEs
Provasson of
international valse-
added netwaork
SOTVICCS
Proadsson of
intermatiomal vahse-
adided network
TViCE
Proadson of
international vahse-
added netwark

SETVICES
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M. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDLARIES {continued)

Fogured Aisnd daprial

Trpe o Fate of mespans o wd [T —— - Trezcgad

Bt of eotspany bogad emisy Dot of itorgoration cparaEacn s e sutudd acFiken

IMUSIC Culhare & Techrology o, Prondsion of misic

Led production a
Limited related infonmalion
Compary  June 9, 2013 PRC X0 services

China Telecom {Ewrope) Limited Pronasion of

inmbertational value-

Limited The Unated Kingdom of Great added network
Compary  Mareh 2, 2006 Beitaim il MNorthemn Ireland  GEPL&1Smiillion services

Zhejiang Yixin Technology Co, Lid. Limited Provision of instant
Compary  August 19, 2003 PRC 11 meseger service

Tiaryi Capital Holding Co, Lid Capital Irvestment
Limited anul prowis on ol
Comparyy  Movemnber 5, 2017 PR S0 comsulling services

Except for Shenzhen Shekon Telecomnmmications Compaery Limited which is $1% owned by the Compary and Zhegiong Yinin Technology Co., Lad
which s 65% awmned by the Comparry, all of the sbove subsidiaries are direetly of indirectly whally owied by the Compary. 2o subsidiaries of tee Group
hanve material non-controlling intenest.

37 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUIN: EMENTS

The: Giroasp s finencinl position wﬂmﬂl-u nl‘cpqmw e sensitive fo ncoourting methaods, plemns and estimutes that underlie the prepamation of
the consolidated financial statements. 1 bases the plion= and extimates on historical experience and on other fackors that the management
betieves bo be reasorable and which form the basss For rakiing juad gesrents aboul matters that are not readily appanent from other sources. On an ot-going
brasis, management evalustes s etimates. Actual results oy differ from these etimales & facts, cromstanoes and conditions change.

The scloction of sgnificant accounting policics. the jud germonts and other imoertaintics alfecting applycation of these policies and the smsativity of
reported resailts Lo chimges in conditions and sssurmplions sre Taclors Lo be considered when reviewing the consolidated lnancial stalaments. The significant

lw.'wrtlrs policies are st forth in Moke 2 Mmnagement believes the following significent sccounting policies imeolve the most sgnificant judgements and
estimates wsed in the preparation of e consolidated fnmcal aatemos.

Allowance Tor dowhi fal debsts

Mamgement edimates an allowanoce for doubtful debits resulting from the insbility of the ceslomers. to make the required payments, Manzgensent bases
its estimates on (ke sgemng of e accounts receivable balance, customer credit-worthiness, md historical write-of T experience. I the fnancial condition of the
cusoners were b detersorate, achml write-offe maght be higher than expected nd could significantly affect the results of figure periads.

F-A3
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37 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDG ENMENTS {continued

Tnpadrment of goadwill and long lived asses
If corcunmstances indicate that the carrying amoust of' 8 long-lived ssset may not be recoverable, the asset may be considered “impared”, and m
inpamnment loss would be recognized in scoordanes with accounting policy for anpasmment of long-lived nsseis as described in Wole Jinl. The caying
amyonints of the Grougp's long-lived assets, ine heding property, plant and equapment, miangible assets with finlle wseful lives and construction i progress ane
reviewed periodically to detemmine whether there is airy indication of impairment. These asscls are tested for inpaimment whenever events of clsnges m
circumstane es indicate that thewr rec orded carrying amoumnts may nol be recoversble. For goodwill, the impainment testing ve performed smumlly at the end of
each reporiing period. The recoverable smount of m asset or uah-%m:rum it is the greater of its value in e ansd fuir vahoe less cosls of disposal, When
am asmet does not gonerate cash flows largely mdependent of these from other assels, the eooverable ¥ i micd For the smallest groug of asoets that
genernies cash inflows mdependenily (ie. » cash-gemerating unét), In determining the value o use, expested futire cash Aows generated by the sssets e
dise otmted bo thear present vahoe. An impasmnent loss i recogmized i the carmyving mmoml of an assel of its cashgmenting il exceeds #s estimated
recoverable amount. 18 s diffioult to precisely estimate finir value of the Group's long:lived assets becouse quoted marked prices for such assets may nod be
readily avallable In determiring the vakie in use, expocted fiture cash Nows generated by the s are discounted 1o tlseie present value, which requsnes
significan pudgement relating to level of revenue, amount of operatimg costs and applicable discownt e, Management vees all readily avalable mformation
in dletermining an amount that is & ressonable approximation of recoverable mmount, incboding estimates based on reasomble md apportabbe ssmptions and
progections of revenoe mwl amount of oporaling cosls.

For the year ended December 3, 2007, provision for smpairment loss of RMEB 10 was made against the camying value of long-lived sssets. For the year
mnided December 31, 2006, provisson fior mrpairent losses of RMBA2 were made against the mrymgﬂlmd‘lmg—!lmm Fof the year ended
December 31, M1 5, provision For impairment losses of RAMESE nmuﬂlgﬂﬂl}ntm}ngwkznﬂaglmﬂdmln & the recoverabl
mvommt of these equipment, signilica judgements wene roquined in estinating foure cash Mows, bevel of revemie, amount of operating costs and applicable
discount rale.

Chamges i these estimates could heve o significam! mmpact on the carying valee of the assets and could result in additiomal ampairment charge or
reversal af irgasimmcrd in filure periods.

Depreciation snd sneoriicstion

Property, plant and equipment and intmngsble nsets with finte useful Inves are deprecisted and amortized on a straight-hne basis over the esturated
wsefll lives of the assets, after taking into account their estmmated residual vahue, Management reviews the estimated wseful lives mnd residonl values of' the
assets meeally in order 1o dotermane the amount of depreceation and amarizalion expense bo be recorded during &y reporting poriod. The wsefisl Fves and
residanl values are based on the Group's historical eperience with sinilar assets and take ite account anticipated technological changes, The depreciation
and amonization expense for Rtire periods is adiusted if there are signalicant changges From previous estimates.,

Clussilication of leave srrangensent with China Tower

The: Compamy and China Toewer entered mnio a lease amingement regarding the beases of Tower Aseelz on July 8 2016 mnd o sgplemental ngreement
on February 1, 2008, Managemiont evaluated the detailed clauses of the lesses agreament and dctanmined such lease armangennts as operating leases
nccanding 1o the nccounting policies disclosed in Mote 2{mi and based on the following udgements: (i) the Company does not exgpect amy tansfer of
comership of Tewer Assets from China Tower by the end of the bease teren; (1) the Compamy coensldered the current bease torm of' 5 years does not scoount for
the nmpor part of the economic lives of Tower Assels; (i) the present value of minmwm lease payment al the inception of the base does nol substantially
nccoumt for all of the fair vahue of the Tower Assets; and (iv) Tower Assets are compatible with all telecomanunications operators, s thesefore are ot of
specialized mamare that ooy the Compary can use tam without magor modifications.

F-#
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38, POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS | NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
FFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL ACOOUNTING PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
LUp te the date of §snze of these consclidated financial statements, the IASH has isaed the following amendments 1o siandards, new standards and
interpretations which are nal yet elfeciive md ol enrly adopled Tor the armmial accounting period ended December 312017

trr-nmr- wraumntiag

ool hapnning an ar s

IFRS 9, “Finvocial letremeats ~ Jumiary 1, 2018
IFRS 15, “Revewmw from Comtracts with Customers ** and the relaged Amendnerts Jumiary 1. 2018
IFRIC 22, “Foweign Curreacy Tremmacions aed Advarce Coreelobrialion Jamiary I, 20018
Amenidments fo IFRS 2, “Classifeation and Meamnemend of Soare-baved Payewerg Tronsaction ™ Jmwary 1. 2018
Amendmenls to IFRS 4, WIFRSS‘W:&IHIWHJ with [FRS 4 fenurance Comtrovis™ Jamiary 1, 2018
Amendrments to [AS 80, “Tranglers of ivesoent Property™ Jmwary 1, 2018
Amendmenis o TAS 28 a8 part of “dmien Improvemenss io FTFRS Sandards 20042006 Cyele Jamary 1. 2018
IFRS 14, “Leases™ Jemary U, 2009
IFRIC 23 = Uneertalnny over fvome T Theatments Jwmiary 12019
Amendments to IFRS % “Prepaesenl Featives wilh egathe Sompeisation Jmmary 1, 2009
Amenidments to IAS 28 “Lomg-ferm I nestn i Aoclaies and Joim Femiures ™ Jewiary 1. 2019
Amendiments (o [FRSs Ao bmprone ments fo JFRS Standirddy 200 5-2007 Cvele ™ Jmmiary 1, 2009
Amendments to TAS 19, “Flan Amenobmend, Curtailmens or Setilemens Jmmiary 1 2019
IFES 17 “hmwrance Cornacts Jmmry I, 2021

Amendments to IFRS 10 and [AS 28, “Sale or Comiribnanioon af Assets Debween ar T sior andl ity Assoclate or St Feadine ™ A date to-be determined

The Group i in the prooess of miking an asscssmont of the mmpact that will resall from adogpding the amendments (o standards, new standands md
imterpredntions ssued by the EASE which mre not vet effective for the scooumnting period ended on December 31, 2007, Except for IFRS 9 Finmncinl
Iistrummsents”, IFRE 15, Revenise from Conlracts welh Cisomens™, imd IFRS 16, “Leases”, mfhl}lrﬂ‘ﬁ:p beeliewes that the adu;u'm o these woendments
to standards, new standnnds and interpretations is wlikely bo have a significant impact on its financial position and the results of cpertions,

IFRS ¢ “Firancial fetremens ™

TFRS @ miroduces new requiraments for the classification and mesurememt of financial assats, fnencial liabilities, peneral bedee accounting and
iEmprasnmenl requircmeents for fmmncial sssels.

Ky requiremnents of IFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

+  [FRS % containg three principal ¢lassalication categories fior Mnancisl assets: measmred at (1) amortised cost, (25 fair value through profit or loss
CFNTPL”), and (3) Fair value trough olher compraiosive income (“FVTOCT L Spocilically:

Dbt mrvestrnents that are held within a busmess maodel whose objective is o colledt the contractml cash flows, and that have contractual terms:
that give rise on specific dates 1o cash Mows that are solely payments of principal and mterest on the principal outstanding are generally moasured
ot mmvortised cost af the end of sabsequent accourting periods, Debd vestments that wre held within a busimees model whese objective i achieved
both coliecting contractml cash flows and selling financial essets, and that have contrmcml tenms that give rise on specific dafes to oash flows
that are salely paviments of principal and interest on the principal smounl oulstanding. are geverally messured ot FVTOOL Other debt imvesiments
are messared @ FYVTPL.

. For exquity securities, the chissification is FyTPL regardless of the entity 's business model. However, enfilics may make an imeooverable election
o presen! sudh gequenil changes in the fair value of @ equity mvestments {that is not held for trading) in ather comprehensave income, with anly
divedend income generally recognized in profit or loss,
In relation bo the Bnpaimeent of financial wesete, [FRS @ requines an expeected onedit loss model. 38 opposed to an moured coedit boss msodel imder LAS
39, "Fanancial Instrenents: Recogrntion and Measurermnent”. The expected eredit boss model requanes 2n entity fo account For expected credit bosses and

changes in these expected credit losses st each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initin] recognition, In cther words, 8 is no longer necessmy
For o credit event tohave accurred belore credit losses are recogired

Fa7
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38, POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDSE | NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 jeontinued)

IFRS & “Firsanciel fnstreerts ™ {oontinssd)

Based on the Group”s francial mstrunsents and risk management policies as off Decenber 31, 2007, the dimectors of the Comparyy anticipate the
followmg pobontial onpact on mitial application of [FES &

Ol flratlors anad mwe auenement

Listed eqquity securitics classified 2 available-for-sale imestments carried of Gair valoe as disclosed in nole 13: these secunities qualificd For desigration
ns mesaired al FYVTOCO! under IFRS 9, however, the fair vabae gains acoumulsied in other reserves mmomting to RMBS™ a8 of January 1, 201 8 will no
lemgper be subsequently rec lassified o profit or boss under IFRS 9, which = dilferant froen the current ireatment. This will affect the amounts recognized anitbe
Gircamp's profil or loss and other comprehensive income in the fishere, bul will not affect iotal comprehensive income;

Equity securitics classified s svailable for-sale investiments coersed ot cost less impaimment as disclosed in note 13: these securitics qualified for
desigration as ieasured af FYTOCT under IFRS & and the Group will measure these secunitics at faar vahic at the end of sut reporting periods with fair
wabie gains or bosses 1o be rerognized as other comprehensive mncoms and nocusmulated in other rescrves, The directors of the Company siticipate that the
remcasremicnd of tese seourilses will ot liave significant fpact on the Group®s consolidated financial staboments; and

Cnber finmncial asels and fimancal Lisbilities wall contmue to be mesuned on the same bases a5 are cormently messired mnder 1AS 36

Tmpedrmem

In genseral, the directors of the Corrguary anticipate that the application af the expec ted credit boss madel of IFRS P will resuli in earlier recognition af
credit lomses which are not vel incurred in relation Lo the Group's fimancial stz memered at amortized coste and olher ilems that subject o the mpairment
provisions upon application of IFRS 9 by the Grosp,

Based on the assessment by ibe directors of the Compay., if the egected crodit loss model m‘.l'\tmbrwhtd bp mtﬁmqa the sccunmilsted amount of
m]mmbewudhyﬂwbrqnd'hluryl 21018 wouhd be slightly increzsed as comy 1o the aoc d ammoum! recognazed under
LAS 39 mainly atiribagable o expotted orodil losses provisson on accounts receivable. Such fariber mmmtmm:d unier epected crodit boss moded
woalld reduce the opoming retained exmings and ncrease the deferred Laot asvets as of January 1, 20018

IFES 13, “Revewnw from Comracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities 1o use in accomnling for revenue ansing from contracts with cetome s, [FRS 15 will

agpersede the cusment revernie recognition guidance inchiding 1AS 18, “Reverne™, 145 11, “Construction Contracts” and the related intepretations when it
becomes eflectve.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is thal an entity should recognize reverue (o depict the ansfer of promised goods or services 1o cuslomers in an smount
that reflects the considerstion 1o whach the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for these goods and services. Specifically, the gandard introduces a S-slep
upprisch o revermse recognition:

. Saep | [dentify the contractish with & customer

. Siep I [dentify the perfomance obligations m ihe contrac

. Step 3: Determine the ransaction price

. Step 4 Allocate the trmsaction price to the perfonmand ¢ obligations in the contrac
. Sicp 5: Recognize revemie when (or as) the enily sstisfics a perfomsance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a perfommance obligation is satisfied, i.c. when “control® of the goods or services underdymg
the preticler perfonmen ce obligation is traesfiermed 1o the customer,

Fig
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3, POSSIRLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS | NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERICD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 {continued)

IFRS 15, “Keveor from Corgracts with Customers © (continued)
Far more prescriptive gusdance has been added m IFRS. 15 to deal with specafic soemarios. Furthermsare, extensive disc bosures are requined by IFRS 15

In Apeil 2016, the LASE issued Clarifications to [FRS 13 in relation to the identification of performmnce obligations, principal versus agent
comsiderations, a3 well as loensing applcation guidance,

The directors of the Compamny bave issessod the mmpact on application of IFRS 15 to the Jroup®s comsolidaled financial s Bl

*  Consderation pavable to 5 customer will be accounted For ne a reduction of the ramsaction price and, therefore, of revenise unbess the pryment to
the customer is in exchange for a distimet good or service that the customer transfers: to the ontity and the fair value of the good or service neceived
froen the custormeer cn be rensonab by estimated. The directors of the Comp any have assessed that certain asbsidies pavable to thind party ngent
incirred in respect of ustomer contracts, which will be ultimately enjoyed by end customens, may be qualified as consadaration payable to
customers mder IFRS 15 and acomunted for as a redisction of operaling revenues, Such costs are generalty cxpensed ns nommed betore the
applacation of [FES 15

= The sabes of tenminal oquipment sl the provision of tel ccormmunications services represent separate performance obligations from the
Comparsy's sales of the promotional packages. Before the application of TFRS. 15, the total contract consideration of 2 promational package i
allogated to revernises genernted trom the provision of telecomiminications seevices and the sales o lerminal eqaipment using the residusl metlod
a iflustrated in Mote 2(0), which & no longer applicable inder IFRS 15, IFRS 15 requires entilies 1o allocate the trnsaction price (o each
performumnce obdigation in the contract on a relative stand-alone selling price basss, The primey impact on revenue recognition will be that when
the Company sells promotional packages, which smvalve the bindled sales of terminal equipment, to customerns, revenise allocated bo temninal
equipment mnd recognized ot contract inception, when controd of the terminal equipment typically passes from the Comgany to the custome , will
tnerease and revenie subsequently recopnared as lelecommminbealions sorveces e delivered diring the contrat period will redute.

= Cerain mrancntal costs inturred i scquirmg a contract with a customer will be defierned on the consolidated staterent of linancial position and
amortized as reveme is recogrized imder the related contract. The direciors af the Comparey hawe as sessed 1hat certain commissions incumed in
ohlaning oustomer Contracts that peyable to tkird party agents may be qualified as merementsl costs under IFRS 12 md will be deferred on the
comsolidated statement of financial position md recognized as an expense when related revemie is recogmized under the contract. Such costs are
genemally expensed 3= incumed before the spplication of IFRS 15,

The combimed impast of the changes is expected to inorease the groes profit recorded st nception on masy austomer cootracis; noasch cases, this will
typically reduce the gross profit reported during the remainder o the contract ten however, these timing differmmos will ot impact the total gross profit
reported for o customer contract ever the contmel fem

Lmdtflhtlurlﬂtd rﬁrmptﬂntmﬂmd the Giroug nbﬂllbfﬂ'l: rodquirements 1o the open contracts exsted sl Jamiary [, 2018, resulting in a0 ininease Lo
1he of s For 3018 ranging frony app b BRI, S0 b RN, 000 for the cumulative effect of the dange,

In addition, the application of IFES 15 in the ftune may resull in more disc| cames in the ¢ Sidated fmancial siatement

IFRS 16, “Lewwes™

IFRS 16 itroduces a comnprohensive model Gior the ilatilication of lease arrangermemis and accounting (reatments Tor both bessors and lessees. [FRS 16
will supersede 1AS 17, “Leases™ and the relaled mierpretati ons when il becomes effective

F-0
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3, POSSIRLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS | NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERICD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 {continued)

IFRS 16, “Legies " (cortirmed b

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basss of whether sn idemtifiied nseet is controlled by 8 custormer. Distinctions of operating leases
mnd finance leases are remeoved for bessee scooumting. and is replaced by a medel where 8 right-of-use asset and = comresponding liabality have 1o be recognized
for all lcases by kessocs, eocopl fior short <o leases nd Ioscs of low value disels

The: right-of-use msset is mitially messured at cost and subsequently measured at cost (subject 1o certam exceplicns) less acrumulated degrecintion and
irpaannent losaes, adpusted for any remcasurernent of the lease rabiBity, The lease liability is mitially measured o the present value of the lesse paymenis that
e miod paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease linhility s adjusted for inforest and lesse pay ments, @ well 2 the mupact of lease modifications, smongst
ofhars. Under the IFRS 16, kease prvments in relion o bease liability will be allocated indo a principasl md an interest portion which will be presented as
fimancing and operaling cash fows, respectively, by the Group.

In confrast to lessee a¢counting, IFRS 16 mabstantially carrics Torward the bessor accounting requinaments in1AS 17, and contmuses 1o reqisine 3 |esseor o
clazsify a bease elthier as am aperating |ease or a finance lease

Furthermore, edensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16,

The directors of the Company are ml}uptuﬂ:u d'mlkmg_mmtoflltnwhmll resull from adopting IFRS. 16, A prelimimsarny
msseasmend indicabes Ut the Groag will recegnize a right-of-use ssset and & comresponding liability in respect of sll the operating leases unless they qualify for
low saloe or short-tenm lesses upon the application of IFRS 146, In addition, the application of new requircments may resull m chinges in measurement,
presentation md dischsure ns indicated ahove. However, it is not praciicable to provide a resseasble estinute of the financial ¢fect watdl the direciors of the
Comparny eomplete a defailed review.

3, PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLIMNG COMPANY

The parent and ultmate Bolding company of the Comgaany as of Decernber 31, 2007 & China Telocommumications Corporation, a stale-ouwned
onterprise esliblished in tee PRC.

F-50
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
17.31 19.78 20.37 18.52 17.32
13.89 16.39 18.55 15.06 15.75
15.83 17.24 19.41 16.38 16.61
17.31 19.47 18.56 16.78 17.28

State Administration of Foreign Exchange 100

2017 11 2017 12 2018 1 2018 2 2018 3 2018 4

17.26 17.32 17.45 17.48 16.95 17.29
16.85 16.96 17.09 16.82 16.57 16.84
17.05 17.13 17.26 17.17 16.78 17.06

State Administration of Foreign Exchange 100

17.25 2018 27
State Administration of Foreign Exchange 100
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of China Telecom Corporation Limited:

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of China Telecom Corporation Limited and
subsidiaries (the "Group") as of December 31, 2016 and 2017, the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
changes in equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes
(collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements’). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2016 and 2017, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2017, in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(“PCAOB"), the Group's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, based on the criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated March 28, 2018, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Group's internal control over
financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Group's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Group's consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with
the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Group in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws
and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement,
whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Hong Kong, the Peopl€e's Republic of China
March 28, 2018

We have served as the Group's auditor since 2013.
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